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The TJX Companies, Inc. is the largest apparel and home

fashions off-price retailer in the United States and world-

wide, operating eight businesses at 2004's year end, and

ranking 141st in the 2004 Fortune 500 rankings. TJX's

of f-pr ice  concept s  inc lude T.J. Maxx, Mar sha l l s ,

HomeGoods, and A.J. Wright in the U.S., Winners and

HomeSense in Canada, and T.K. Maxx in Europe. Bob's

Stores is a value-oriented, family apparel retailer, with

stores in the northeastern U.S. Our off-price mission is to

deliver a rapidly changing assortment of quality, brand

name merchandise at prices that are 20 - 60% less than

department and specialty store regular prices, every day.

Our target customer for our off-price concepts is a mid-

dle- to upper-middle income shopper, who is fashion and

value conscious and fits the same profile as a department

store shopper, with the exception of A.J. Wright, which

reaches a more moderate-income market. Bob's Stores has

a customer demographic spanning the moderate to

upper-middle income range, with a higher percentage

of males in its customer base.
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At TJX, we have a solid, tested off-

price concept, with great synergies

among our divisions that allow us to

lever best practices and our organiza-

tional experience.Customers love the

treasure-hunt experience of shopping

our stores,which offer great values on

a rapidly changing assortment of qual-

ity, brand name merchandise, every

day. Our off-price business model is

based on buying opportunistically, rap-

idly turning inventories, a low cost

structure, flexibility in distribution

centers and store formats, and IT sys-

tems unique to our off-price strategies.

With our sights set firmly on the

future, our solid track record of steady

growth through both weak and strong

economies supports our belief in our

ability to continue to grow through

different retail environments.We con-

tinue to evolve and inject freshness

into our more established divisions, as

well as our younger ones, and we have

confidence in the ability of our divi-

sions to reach their growth potentials.

Our confidence in the short- and

long-term success of our Company is

grounded in our strong financial

underpinnings. We have the ability

to simultaneously reinvest in our busi-

nesses, launch new initiatives, and

continue to deliver excellent returns

for  our shareholder s .With our

extremely disciplined approach to

investing capital, we make relatively

small initial investments in new stores,

which typically reach profitability in

their fir st year of operation and

achieve returns on investment that

are well above our cost of capital and

highly attractive in the retail industry.

Our credit rating is among the high-

est in retail, assuring vendors and the

real estate community of our financial

strength and stability.

We have built our Company

upon an extremely solid financial foun-

dation,and as we look to the future,our

financial strength supports our belief

in the continued successful growth of

TJX in the short and long term.

Growth Through 
Financial Strength
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TO  O U R  F E L L OW  S H A R E H O L D E R S : Excellent per-

formance at The Marmaxx Group, the internal combination of

T.J.Maxx and Marshalls,which represents 70% of our revenues

and 86% of profits, drove our solid results in 2004. Diluted

earnings per share grew by 12%*, on a comparable basis,which

was in line with our expectations.We began 2004 with the stated

goal of improving comparable store sales increases, and we are

pleased to have achieved a 5% increase on a consolidated basis,

which was at the high end of our expectations.While results at

our smaller divisions came in below our expectations in 2004,

we believe we have identified the issues affecting them and are

well poised to improve performance at those businesses in the

year ahead. Overall, we grew square footage by 8% in 2004,

adding 162 stores to end the year with a total of 2,224 stores.

R E T U R N I N G  VA L U E  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

We achieved an after-tax return on average shareholders’

equity of 41%, while maintaining an excellent financial posi-

tion.Two thousand and four marked the sixth consecutive year

that we have delivered an after-tax return of 40% or higher,

placing us in the top tier of the retail industry.Total sales

increased by 12% to $14.9 billion over the 53-week fiscal

period last year.Net income was $664 million and diluted earn-

ings per share were $1.30, including the impact of a $.04 per

share one-time, non-cash charge related to lease accounting.

On a 52-week comparable basis and without the lease account-

ing charge, this represents a 12%* increase, which was in line

with our expectations.

In 2004, we began the year with a significant cash bal-

ance and generated an additional $1.1 billion from operations.

We reinvested $429 million in our businesses, repurchased

$588 million of TJX stock, and increased our dividend sub-

stantially.We continue to view our significant share repurchase

program as an important method of returning value to share-

holders. Once again, we started the new year of 2005 in an

excellent financial position.

D I V I S I O N A L  P E R F O R M A N C E : The Marmaxx

Group had an outstanding year,posting results that underscore

our continued view of this major division as a growth driver

for TJX.This division topped $10 billion in total sales, reach-

ing $10.5 billion,and segment profit (defined as pre-tax income

before general corporate and net interest expense) surpassed 

$1billion for the first time.

A chief goal for this division in 2004 was to drive com-

parable store sales, and we are delighted that Marmaxx

delivered a 4% comparable store sales increase for the year.Our

major initiative to expand our jewelry/accessories departments

at T.J.Maxx and footwear departments at Marshalls,which further

differentiates these businesses, outperformed our expectations.

With our increased focus,these categories,across both T.J.Maxx

and Marshalls,posted double-digit comparable store sales increases

in 2004.Women’s sportswear was another strong category,as we

benefited from a resurgence of women’s fashion trends during

the year.The Marmaxx organization did a superb job of execut-

ing our merchandising and inventory strategies, flowing fresh

product to our stores at the right time for every season.We are

also pleased with this division’s expense management in 2004.

As we continue to bring newness and freshness into our most

established division, we look forward to continued successful

growth for Marmaxx in 2005 and beyond.

Winners and HomeSense, in Canada, continued to

offer great off-price values on apparel and home fashions.

Winners had a very solid first half of the year, fueled by strong

trends in women’s fashions, followed by a disappointing 

second half and finish to 2004. Entering the second half of

2004 with exceptionally high comparable store sales increases,

Winners overcommitted in its buying.When the Canadian

retail environment turned very promotional,Winners took

aggressive markdowns to clear inventory.We have implemented

improvements to both the distribution center network and

planning and allocation area to ensure more effective inven-

tory management.

HomeSense, which we launched in 2001 to bring the 

off-price concept to home fashions in Canada, is that country’s

only off-price home fashions chain.HomeSense had a good year

and continued to expand its store base into new markets. In 

addition to our HomeSense standalone format, our Canadian

superstores, which combine a Winners and HomeSense, per-

formed exceptionally well in 2004. Our Winners division 

continues to be a strong business, with excellent returns on

investment, and we believe we are poised to improve results in

Canada in 2005.

T.K.Maxx, the off-price leader in the U.K.and Ireland,had

a solid year.Total sales surpassed $1 billion for the first time, in

2004,the same year that this division celebrated its 10th anniver-

sary in business.T.K.Maxx delivered admirable results despite the

difficult retail environment that prevailed in the U.K. through-

out the year, with unusually harsh weather during the first half

and one of the most promotional holiday selling seasons in

many years.T.K.Maxx remained extremely disciplined in man-

aging its inventories and expenses, and significantly grew its 

segment profit.T.K.Maxx has done an excellent job of capital-

izing upon various types of real estate opportunities, and we

believe that the development of retail centers in city locations,

where our stores are typically most productive,bodes well for our

plans to grow T.K.Maxx in 2005 and beyond.

HomeGoods is another concept that reached the 

$1-billion mark in total sales in 2004. However, we were 

disappointed with this division’s results for the year.While

there was a general malaise in home fashions in 2004, we

did not execute our merchandising strategies as well as we

could have at this division. In the early part of the year, we

missed certain opportunities in seasonal categories.We also

moved our merchandise mix to be more upscale, a strategy

that had worked very well for us until this year, when we

took that strategy a bit too far against a weak environment

for home fashions. As we begin a new year, we have

addressed these merchandising issues and we are seeing

positive customer response to our more balanced offer-

ings.We have continued confidence in our HomeGoods

concept, which, with its great, off-price values on rapidly

*4% on a GAAP basis, including the $.04 per share lease accounting charge
in FY2005 and the est. $.05 per share benefit of 53rd week in FY2004.



3

turning merchandise assortments sourced from around the

world, remains truly unique in home fashions retailing.

A.J.Wright had a strong start to the year,but with soft sales

for the balance of the year, top- and bottom-line results for 2004

came in below our expectations.A.J.Wright’s performance was

hurt by a combination of a spike in gas prices,affecting its mod-

erate-income customer base, coupled with a softening of

demand for urban fashion,which had been benefiting the busi-

ness. A.J. Wright managed admirably through this fashion

reversal by modifying its merchandise mix, and sales began

improving in the third quarter.However, in retrospect,we real-

ize that when we opened 16 stores in the late fall,we put added

pressure on the organization,which contributed to A.J.Wright’s

weak finish for the year.To give this business time to catch its

breath, we have slowed down its aggressive growth plan and

expect to open 25 stores in 2005,with no openings scheduled

for the fourth quarter.We also are looking at ways to reduce

the cost structure throughout this business and are further

conducting market analysis of this moderate-income cus-

tomer, to learn how to better serve her.We believe that we are

taking the necessary steps to ensure the success of A.J.Wright,

and,with its huge,moderate-income customer demographic,

that it holds great potential for the future of our Company.

Bob’s Stores made solid progress in its first full year as a

TJX division.We significantly strengthened the Bob’s merchant

organization, repositioned promotional activity, improved

inventory management, fine-tuned product assortment, and

tested a smaller store size. Our plan is to grow Bob’s Stores

slowly and deliberately, taking the time to get the concept right

before we roll it out aggressively. Long term, we view Bob’s

Stores as a significant growth opportunity for TJX.

D E P T H  I N  M A N A G E M E N T : At TJX, succession

planning is a top priority, and the collective experience of our

management team in off-price and at TJX, which can be

measured in centuries, gives us confidence that we have the

right team in place to support our goals for growth. In 2004,

Ernie Herrman was promoted to succeed Carol Meyrowitz as

President of The Marmaxx Group from his position as Chief

Operating Officer of that division. We extend our sincere

gratitude to Carol for her many years of tremendous service

to our Company and our very best wishes for her future suc-

cess. Ernie brings 15 years of merchandising experience and

broad leadership to his new post at Marmaxx as we pursue the

many exciting growth opportunities that lie ahead for our

largest division. Succeeding Ernie as Chief Operating Officer

of Marmaxx is Jerome Rossi, who had been President of

HomeGoods since 2000.With this appointment, we are tap-

ping Jerry’s previous and extensive operational experience

with the Marmaxx organization.We are indeed fortunate to

have a seasoned Group President in Alex Smith,who provides

continuity and leadership for both Marmaxx and HomeGoods.

In January 2005, Richard Lesser, who served in the role

of Senior Corporate Advisor since 2001, retired. Dick has

been an integral part of the culture,growth and success of TJX

for the past quarter of a century.He was promoted to President

of T.J. Maxx in 1986 and led the The Marmaxx Group as

President from 1995 to 2001. We are delighted that Dick 

continues as a member of our Board of Directors,and look for-

ward to his continued, valued involvement in that role.

We were deeply saddened by Stanley Feldberg’s passing.

A founder of our predecessor company,Zayre Corp., in 1956,

Stanley served as its President until 1978 and remained with

the Company as a Director until 1989. He was a member of

various corporate and nonprofit boards and was a great philan-

thropist.Regularly attending our annual meetings with his wife,

Theodora, up until the time of his death, Stanley will be

missed by all who knew him.

C O N F I D E N C E  I N  F U T U R E  G ROW T H : We made

a commitment at the outset of 2004 to embark in new direc-

tions and drive comparable store sales growth.A year later,we

are pleased to have delivered, achieving our highest consoli-

dated comparable store sales increase in the last five years. In

addition to expanding categories at our Marmaxx,Winners and

T.K. Maxx divisions, we entered the online retail arena,

launching e-commerce sites for our T.J.Maxx and HomeGoods

divisions.While these e-commerce sites represent a small

piece of our business today,we believe the online channel will

become increasingly important to TJX in the long term. In

sum,we are confident that The Marmaxx Group will continue

to be a major growth driver for TJX and, although we were

disappointed with the results of our smaller businesses,we are

also confident that the lessons learned in 2004 create oppor-

tunities to improve performance in 2005 and beyond.We have

significant growth potential at every division of the Company

and continue to target a 15% compound annual growth rate

for earnings per share over the long term.We plan to grow 

selling square footage by 8% in 2005 and to net an additional

161 stores, and ultimately grow to over 4,400 stores with our

current portfolio of businesses. Finally, our very strong finan-

cial position continues to serve as a foundation upon which

to grow in 2005 and beyond.

We thank all of our dedicated Associates, who now

number approximately 113,000,our customers, our vendors,

other business associates, and our fellow shareholders for their

ongoing support.

Respectfully,

Bernard Cammarata

Chairman of the Board

Edmond J. English

President and 

Chief Executive Officer
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The Marmaxx Group*

— 1,468 stores in 48 states and Puerto Rico 

— 2004 selling square footage growth: 4% 

— Netted 50 additional stores in 2004

— Average store size: 30,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling square footage by 4% and net 

47 new stores in 2005

— Long-term store base potential: 1,800 stores

*T.J. Maxx and Marshalls

We have always viewed and continue to view The Marmaxx

Group, our largest division, as a growth vehicle for TJX in

the short and long term.We founded our T.J. Maxx concept

in 1976, with the mission to deliver a rapidly changing

assortment of quality, brand name merchandise at prices

that are 20 – 60% less than department and specialty store

regular prices, every day.Acquiring Marshalls in 1995 dou-

bled our size and with the significant synergies of T.J. Maxx

and Marshalls, today,The Marmaxx Group remains the pow-

erhouse of off-price retailing.

T.J. Maxx and Marshalls operate on the same flexible

business model that is at the core of all of our off-price 

Jewelry and Accessories to the Maxx
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concepts.We buy opportunistically and close to need, taking

advantage of the abundant opportunities in the marketplace.

We maintain an inventory discipline that allows us to be nim-

ble in our navigation of the marketplace, following fashion

trends, not forcing the market.The expertise of our merchant

organization and their competitive intelligence give us the

ability to be right on fashion, right on timing, and right on

price, and to keep our contract with our customers to offer

great values on great fashions, every day.

A key component of our growth strategy is to ensure

that our T.J. Maxx and Marshalls chains are differentiated,

encouraging customers to shop both concepts. Our target 

customer for both Marmaxx concepts is a middle to upper-

middle income shopper, who is fashion and value conscious

and fits the same profile as a department store shopper. Our

market analysis proves the power of this strategy — next to 

T.J. Maxx, the number one shopping destination for our 

T.J. Maxx customers is Marshalls, and vice versa.

Our major growth initiative for The Marmaxx Group

in 2004 was the expansion of our jewelry/accessories depart-

ments at T.J. Maxx [pictured here] and footwear departments

at Marshalls,which goes a long way to further differentiate these

chains.These initiatives drove overall sales increases in the

stores in which we expanded the departments and also increased
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sales in these categories at both chains. Combined, jewelry,

accessories and footwear,across T.J.Maxx and Marshalls,posted

an impressive 17% comparable store sales increase in 2004.

At T.J.Maxx,we have always enjoyed a strong business

in jewelry and accessories,so expanding these highly productive

categories was a logical next step for growing this concept.

Based on customers’ enthusiastic response to prototypes we

had tested,we aggressively rolled out expanded jewelry/acces-

sories departments to a third of our T.J. Maxx chain in 2004,

ending the year with a total of over 300 larger departments.

In 2005,we plan to continue rolling these out to another third

of the chain, adding more than 260 larger departments in

existing stores, and including them in all new T.J. Maxx

stores.We intend to continue the roll-out of these successful

departments to the entire T.J.Maxx chain,with plans to complete

the process in 2006.

Marshalls has benefited from a great family footwear

business for many years, so we were excited to embark in the

direction of capitalizing upon this strength in 2004.Interestingly,

the idea to expand footwear at Marshalls sprung from our suc-

cess with expanded footwear offerings at T.K.Maxx.Although

we have seven off-price nameplates at TJX,our Company actu-

ally operates as one business, so we can easily take good ideas

from one of our off-price concepts to another.With shoes in
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Stepping Out with Shoe Expansions

the spotlight, Marshalls has become a footwear shopping des-

tination [pictured here], further differentiating this chain from

T.J.Maxx.Having tested several prototypes in 2003,we added

over 60 expanded footwear departments in 2004 to end the year

with nearly 70.Since this initiative requires, in many cases,phys-

ically expanding our stores, it will take longer to fully roll out

than the jewelry/accessories initiative at T.J.Maxx.Still, in the

upcoming year,we plan to add more than 50 expanded footwear

departments to new and existing stores, and continue the

Marshalls footwear roll-out beyond 2005.

As our successful expansion of jewelry, accessories and

footwear bears out,we have many innovative ways to continue

to grow our Marmaxx division beyond adding stores.That

said, we continue to have plenty of opportunities for store

growth. Our expertise in real estate and customer demo-

graphics allows us to locate stores near to where customers

live, in tight trading areas, often placing T.J. Maxx near

Marshalls, and vice versa, along with HomeGoods nearby, to

create off-price shopping destinations.We are excited about

the growth potential of our largest division, and are confident

in our ability to continue to successfully grow this business

in the near and long term.
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Style and Savings, Side by Side

Bringing our off-price concept to new geographic markets is one

of the many ways in which we grow TJX. Since entering the

Canadian marketplace with the acquisition of Winners as a five-

store chain in 1990,we have built this business to its place as the

premier off-price apparel and home fashions retailer in Canada.

In 2001, we levered the success of our HomeGoods concept in

the U.S. and launched HomeSense in Canada. Our expansion

throughout Canada has served TJX extremely well, with our

Canadian business delivering excellent returns on investment and

high profit contributions.

As with all of our businesses,at Winners,we have many inno-

vative methods of responding to customers’ tastes and growing

beyond adding stores.We now have 11 superstores in Canada,

which combine a Winners and a HomeSense, generally in a

Winners

— 168 stores in 10 

Canadian provinces

— 2004 selling square 

footage growth: 7%

— Added 8 stores in 2004

— Average store size:

29,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling 

square footage by 3% and

net 4 new stores in 2005

— Long-term store base 

potential: 200 stores

HomeSense

— 40 stores in 5 

Canadian provinces

— 2004 selling square 

footage growth: 60% 

— Added 15 stores in 2004

— Average standalone store 

size: 25,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling 

square footage by 44% 

and add 17 stores in 2005

— Long-term store base 

potential: 80 stores
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side-by-side configuration [pictured here]. These stores are

dual branded, with two passageways providing easy access for

shopping at both concepts. Our superstores, which create an

off-price shopping destination,have experienced strong open-

ings and are highly productive.These side-by-side stores have

been very positively received by our customers and are driv-

ing customer traffic to both Winners and HomeSense.

Encouraged by these strong results, we brought this initiative

to the U.S.to test this new superstore configuration at Marmaxx

and HomeGoods, which has also shown positive early results.

Another example of cross-pollinating ideas across our

off-price businesses is the development over the last few years

of our jewelry, accessories and footwear categories at Winners,

based on our success in these areas at Marmaxx.Customers love

these expanded offerings! By the end of 2004,we had over 110

family footwear departments at Winners, adding men’s and 

children’s to our existing ladies’offerings,and will continue the

roll-out of these family footwear departments to the entire

chain in the upcoming year.We also look forward to contin-

uing to expand our offerings in jewelry and accessories in 2005,

as these,along with footwear,present opportunities for growth.

In 2004,we continued to extend the reach of our younger

HomeSense concept into new markets, introducing it to three

more Canadian provinces.HomeSense continues to take hold

with shoppers, and we are excited about bringing this concept

to more new markets in 2005 and the years ahead.
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T.K. Maxx

— 170 stores in U.K. and Ireland

— 2004 selling square footage growth: 23%

— Added 23 stores in 2004

— Average store size: 28,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling square footage by 20% and net 

23 new stores in 2005

— Long-term store base potential: 300 stores

When we launched T.K. Maxx in the U.K. in 1994 to fur-

ther expand the T.J.Maxx shopping experience internation-

ally, the concept of off-price retail was virtually unknown in

that country.A decade later,T.K. Maxx is the place to shop

for savvy shoppers in the U.K. and Ireland. Our T.K. Maxx

stores are highly productive,with the greatest sales per square

foot of any of our concepts. Surpassing $1 billion in sales in

2004,T.K. Maxx is making significant contributions to TJX

while it continues to grow.

Our Bullring store in Birmingham [pictured here]

opened in 2004 and punctuates how T.K. Maxx has really

arrived! The recently developed Bullring Center is a premier

shopping destination that has garnered the attention of 
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Simply Brilliant!

shoppers and media alike in the U.K., attracting new cus-

tomers to T.K.Maxx.This well-known location represents one

more strategy in our store opening program at T.K.Maxx.This

division has done an extremely good job of capitalizing upon

a variety of locations, from out-of-town centers to high

streets. Further,T.K. Maxx has taken great advantage of our

flexible store format and operates stores on one floor, two

floors and even three floors, as well as in several different sizes.

As we begin a new year,we view the development of city cen-

ters on high streets in the U.K. as a promising opportunity.

Expanded footwear and accessories departments, which

now number about 25, have performed exceptionally well at

T.K.Maxx.Category expansions further illustrate how we take

successful ideas from one business to another,an important way

in which we continue to grow our Company.Having brought

the footwear initiative from the U.K. over to the U.S. and

Canada,we are now bringing the concept of expanding home

fashions to the U.K. from North America.

T.K. Maxx holds a unique place in retailing through-

out the U.K. and Ireland.This division has succeeded in tai-

loring our off-price concept to suit the British and Irish

markets, and we believe will continue to play to its strengths

and expand successfully.
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A Worldwide Treasure Hunt

HomeGoods

— 216 stores in 33 states and Puerto Rico 

— 2004 selling square footage growth: 17%

— Added 34 stores in 2004

— Average standalone store size: 27,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling square footage by 19% and net 

40 new stores in 2005

— Long-term store base potential: 650 stores

We launched our HomeGoods concept in 1992 as a way to

expand upon our success with home fashions at T.J. Maxx.

HomeGoods is a truly unique off-price concept that oper-

ates on the same business platform as our core Marmaxx 

division.We source product opportunistically and turn inven-

tories at store level eight times per year,on average,comparable

with our apparel concepts, and practically unheard of in

home fashions retailing.At HomeGoods, customers love the

treasure hunt shopping experience [pictured here], with

thousands of new items arriving at each store every week.

Our HomeGoods merchants travel the globe to offer our

savvy customers a treasure trove of distinctive home décor

accents, all at great values. For our customers, a trip to

HomeGoods can produce fine, Irish linens, Italian glassware,

Provencal pottery, or African art pieces, minus the airfare!
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Whether home accents, statement pieces,or more basic items,

such as cookware and bedding, HomeGoods offers an excel-

lent value proposition for all of our merchandise assortments.

We offer great values, at 20 – 60% less than specialty and

department store regular prices,every day,making HomeGoods

a unique shopping destination in home fashions retailing.

In 2004, we tested a dual-branding initiative to reach

new customers with our HomeGoods concept. This dual

branding gives the HomeGoods name equal billing with T.J.

Maxx or Marshalls in our existing superstores.We also tested

dual branding in a new combination superstore format for

HomeGoods and T.J. Maxx, based on the success of our

Winners/HomeSense side-by-side stores in Canada.With

encouraging early results showing that dual branding attracts

new customers to both sides of the business, we will be

expanding these tests to more superstores this year and will con-

tinue to open more stores in the combination configuration.

We also launched an e-commerce site in 2004,

www.homegoods.com, marking HomeGoods’ entrée to the

Internet.We are excited about this website, which provides

a national platform for this business that we believe will go

a long way to building brand awareness for HomeGoods

across the U.S.We have seen encouraging early trends in

our online business and are looking forward to its growth

prospects for the future.

We are excited by the opportunities that lie ahead for

HomeGoods, and believe that the fundamental strengths of

this business and its unique niche in home fashions retailing

will continue to fuel its growth.
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A.J.Wright

— 130 stores in 20 states 

— 2004 selling square footage growth: 32%

— Netted 31 additional stores in 2004

— Average store size: 26,000 square feet

— Plan to grow selling square footage space by 20% and 

add 25 stores in 2005

— Long-term store base potential: 1,000+ stores

Our launch of A.J.Wright in 1998 introduced our off-price con-

cept to the vast moderate-income customer demographic.The

opportunities that we recognized in the moderate-income mar-

ketplace, at that time, are the strengths of the A.J.Wright 

concept [pictured here] today.The nearly limitless marketplace

in moderate brands provides our A.J.Wright merchants a tremen-

dous opportunity to offer customers the right product, at the

right price, at the right time.We also recognized the plentiful

real estate opportunities for this concept and have found that

indeed, these opportunities continue to play an important part

in A.J.Wright’s roll-out plans.In 2004,we were excited to extend

A.J.Wright’s reach to the West Coast, opening five stores
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in California, which presents excellent prospects with its

densely populated market.

We continue to learn more about the A.J.Wright customer

base. Since launching this business, we have found that

these customers are more “fashion forward” than we had

originally thought. A.J. Wright customers are also more

price sensitive than our core, middle to upper-middle

income customers, and in 2004, we saw how economic

conditions, such as gas prices, have a greater impact on this

customer demographic.We are continuing to do extensive

market analysis to determine how to best serve our A.J.

Wright customers, offering great values on both the latest

fashion looks as well as more standard merchandise for the

entire family.

As we develop this business, we will continue listen-

ing to our customers, remaining flexible and nimble,

expanding and contracting departments as trends change.

We believe we have particular opportunities to make greater

statements in children’s product lines and special sizes,

which we will be pursuing in 2005. A.J. Wright makes a

unique connection with its customer base, offering a dis-

tinct, value-oriented shopping experience, and we continue

to believe in the potential for A.J.Wright to grow to an over

1,000-store chain.

Great Fashions, Great Prices



16

Go Team!

Bob’s Stores

— 32 stores in Northeastern U.S.

— Netted 1 additional store in 2004

— Average store size: 46,000 square feet

— Plan to add five stores in existing markets in 2005

— Long-term store base potential: 400 stores

At TJX, we have an excellent track record of starting and

acquiring businesses.We believe that Bob’s Stores, which we

acquired in 2003, will be a significant growth vehicle for our

Company over the long term.Bob’s Stores is a value-oriented

retailer of brand-name, family apparel that has many synergies

with our off-price businesses, including similar product cate-

gories and potential economies of scale in advertising,real estate

and merchandising. Bob’s Stores draws a largely male cus-

tomer base that spans the moderate to upper-middle income

range, a great complement to the predominately female 

customer base of our other divisions. As with our off-price 

concepts, Bob’s Stores has extremely loyal customers, who

love the fun of shopping at Bob’s Stores. In fact,Bob’s has a very

effective customer loyalty program that we believe will con-

tinue to serve Bob’s well in growing this business.

As our newest division,Bob’s Stores is a work in progress,

and it certainly made a lot of progress in 2004.One important

stride was honing its merchandise mix.As we move forward,

we plan to capitalize upon Bob’s Stores’ significant presence in

the athletic footwear, workwear and activewear arenas.

As the official apparel store for the Boston Red Sox,

New England Patriots, Boston Celtics, and Boston Bruins,

teamwear [pictured here] was a great performer during the year,

with the Red Sox winning the World Series and the Patriots

winning the Super Bowl! We believe its niche in teamwear will

provide an edge as Bob’s Stores moves into new geographic

markets over time.

Growing deliberately and planning to add five stores in

2005, we believe Bob’s Stores has the potential over time of

growing to be a chain of 400 stores in the U.S.
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At TJX, giving back to the communities in which we

work and live is part of who we are.With children and

families at the center of our charitable giving and volunteer

activities, we supported over 1,000 nonprofit organizations

in 2004. Over 31,000 Associates donated to The United

Way, and Associates participated in many charitable activ-

ities throughout the year.

In response to the tragic earthquake and tsunami in the

Indian Ocean, we undertook a Company-wide effort to

support the relief efforts.We made significant donations to

the American Red Cross, the Canadian Red Cross, and the

Disasters Emergency Committee in the U.K.We also con-

ducted in-store and online campaigns to assist with disaster

relief, and Associates across TJX made contributions through

our stores, distribution centers and offices.

In 2004, T.J. Maxx marked its 20th year supporting

Save the Children as Marshalls continued to support the

Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation and the Family

Violence Prevention Fund. HomeGoods continued to focus

on the Jimmy Fund, A.J. Wright continued to work with

the Boys and Girls Clubs of America, and Bob’s Stores 

initiated a relationship with Special Olympics. Sunshine

Dreams for Kids, a Canadian organization dedicated to

making dreams come true for children with severe physical

disabilities and life-threatening illnesses, continued to

be the focus for Winners and HomeSense.T.K.Maxx con-

tinued to support NCH, which assists vulnerable children

and their families in the U.K., and conducted a very suc-

cessful ‘GiveGet’ campaign to benefit Cancer Research UK.

As of 2004’s year end, we have hired approximately

45,000 individuals from the welfare system since 1997

through our Welfare-to-Work Program.Through our TJXtra!®

program, we continued to raise awareness among Associates,

their families and friends, about helpful government benefits.

Cultural diversity remains a top priority, which we support

through our hiring programs, community outreach and our

Minority and Women-Owned Suppliers program.

A Giving Spirit

Save the Children/Michael Bisceglie
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Part I

I T E M  1 . B U S I N E S S

We are the leading off-price retailer of apparel and home fashions in the United States and worldwide. Our seven off-price

chains are synergistic in their philosophies and operating platforms. We sell off-price family apparel and home fashions through our

T.J. Maxx, Marshalls and A.J. Wright chains in the United States, our Winners chain in Canada, and our T.K. Maxx chain in the

United Kingdom and Ireland. We sell off-price home fashions through our HomeGoods chain in the United States and our

Canadian HomeSense chain, operated by Winners. The target customer for all of our off-price chains, except A.J. Wright, is the

middle to upper-middle income shopper, with the same profile as a department or specialty store customer. A.J. Wright targets the

moderate income customer. Bob’s Stores, acquired in December 2003, is a value-oriented, branded apparel chain based in the

Northeast United States that offers casual, family apparel. Bob’s Stores’ target customer demographic spans the moderate to upper-

middle income bracket.

Our off-price mission is to deliver an exciting, fresh and rapidly changing assortment of brand-name merchandise at excellent

values to our customers. We define value as the combination of quality, brand, fashion and price. With over 400 buyers and over

10,000 vendors worldwide and over 2,200 stores, we believe we are well positioned to continue accomplishing this goal. Our key

strengths include:

— expertise in off-price buying

— substantial buying power

— synergistic businesses with flexible business model

— solid relationships with many manufacturers and other merchandise suppliers

— deep organization with decades of experience in off-price retailing

— inventory management systems and distribution networks specific to our off-price business model

— financial strength and an excellent credit rating

As an off-price retailer, we offer quality, name brand and designer family apparel and home fashions every day at substantial

savings from comparable department and specialty store regular prices. We can offer these everyday savings as a result of our

opportunistic buying strategies, disciplined inventory management, including rapid inventory turns, and low expense structure.

In our off-price concepts, we purchase the majority of our inventory opportunistically. Different from traditional retailers that

order goods far in advance of the time they appear on the selling floor, TJX buyers are in the marketplace virtually every week. By

maintaining a liquid inventory position, our buyers can buy close to need, enabling them to buy into current market trends and take

advantage of the opportunities in the marketplace. Due to the unpredictable nature of consumer demand in the marketplace and the

mismatch of supply and demand, we are regularly able to buy the vast majority of our inventory directly from manufacturers, with

some merchandise coming from retailers and others. Virtually all of our buys for our off-price concepts are made at discounts from

initial wholesale prices. We generally purchase merchandise to sell in the current selling season, with a limited quantity of packaway

merchandise that we buy specifically to warehouse and sell in a future selling season. We are willing to purchase less than a full

assortment of styles and sizes. We pay promptly and do not ask for typical retail concessions in our off-price chains such as

advertising, promotional and markdown allowances or delivery concessions such as drop shipments to stores or delayed deliveries.

Our financial strength, strong reputation and ability to sell large quantities of merchandise through a geographically diverse network

of stores provide us excellent access to leading branded merchandise. Our opportunistic buying permits us to consistently offer our

customers a rapidly changing merchandise assortment at everyday values that are below department and specialty store regular prices.

We are extremely disciplined in our inventory management, and we rapidly turn the inventory in our off-price chains. We rely

heavily on sophisticated, internally developed inventory systems and controls that permit a virtually continuous flow of merchandise

into our stores and an expansive distribution infrastructure that supports our close-to-need buying by delivering goods to our stores

quickly and efficiently. For example, highly automated storage and distribution systems track, allocate and deliver an average of

11,000 items per week to each T.J. Maxx and Marshalls store. In addition, specialized computer inventory planning, purchasing and

monitoring systems, coupled with warehouse storage, processing, handling and shipping systems, permit a continuous evaluation and

rapid replenishment of store inventory. Pricing, markdown decisions and store inventory replenishment requirements are determined

centrally, using satellite-transmitted information provided by point-of-sale computer terminals and are designed to move inventory
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through our stores in a timely and disciplined manner. These inventory management and distribution systems allow us to achieve

rapid in-store inventory turnover on a vast array of product and sell substantially all merchandise within targeted selling periods.

We operate with a low cost structure relative to many other retailers. While we seek to provide a pleasant, easy shopping

environment with emphasis on customer convenience, we do not spend large amounts on store fixtures. Our selling floor space is

flexible and largely free of permanent fixtures, so we can easily expand and contract departments in response to customer demand

and available merchandise. Also, our large presence, strong financial position and expertise in the real estate market allow us to obtain

favorable lease terms. In our off-price concepts, our advertising budget as a percentage of sales is low compared to traditional

department and specialty stores, with our advertising focused on awareness of shopping at our stores rather than promoting particular

merchandise. Our high sales-per-square-foot productivity and rapid inventory turnover also provide expense efficiencies.

With all of our off-price chains operating with the same off-price strategies and systems, we are able to capitalize upon

expertise and best practices across our chains, develop associates by transferring them from one chain to another, and grow our

various businesses more efficiently and effectively.

During the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005, we derived 81.4% of our sales from the United States (30.1% from the

Northeast, 14.5% from the Midwest, 23.1% from the South, 0.8% from the Central Plains, and 12.9% from the West), 8.6% from

Canada, 8.8% from Europe (specifically, in the United Kingdom and Ireland) and 1.2% from Puerto Rico.

We consider each of our operating divisions to be a segment. The T.J. Maxx and Marshalls store chains are managed as one

division, referred to as Marmaxx, and are reported as a single segment. The Winners and HomeSense chains, which operate

exclusively in Canada, are also managed as one division and are reported as a single segment. Each of our other store chains, T.K.

Maxx, HomeGoods, A.J. Wright and Bob’s Stores are reported as separate segments. More detailed information about our segments

can be found in Note N to the consolidated financial statements.

Unless otherwise indicated, all store information is as of January 29, 2005, and references to store square footage are to gross

square feet. Fiscal 2003 means the fiscal year ended January 25, 2003, fiscal 2004 means the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004, fiscal

2005 means the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005, and fiscal 2006 means the fiscal year ending January 28, 2006. Our business is

subject to seasonal influences, which causes us generally to realize higher levels of sales and income in the second half of the year.

This is common in the apparel retail business.

T . J .  M A X X  A N D  M A R S H A L L S

T.J. Maxx is the largest off-price retail chain in the United States, with 771 stores in 48 states. Marshalls is the second-largest

off-price retailer in the United States, with 683 stores in 42 states, as well as 14 stores in Puerto Rico. We maintain the separate

identities of the T.J. Maxx and Marshalls stores through product assortment and merchandising, marketing and store appearance.

This encourages our customers to shop at both chains.

T.J. Maxx and Marshalls primarily target female shoppers who have families with middle to upper-middle incomes and who

generally fit the profile of a department or specialty store customer. These chains operate with a common buying and merchandising

organization and have consolidated administrative functions, including finance and human resources. The combined organization,

known internally as The Marmaxx Group, offers us increased leverage to purchase merchandise at favorable prices and allows us to

operate with a lower cost structure. These advantages are key to our ability to sell quality, brand name merchandise at substantial

discounts from department and specialty store regular prices.

T.J. Maxx and Marshalls sell quality, brand name merchandise at prices generally 20%-60% below department and specialty

store regular prices. Both chains offer family apparel, accessories, giftware, and home fashions. Within these broad categories, T.J.

Maxx offers a shoe assortment for women and fine jewelry, while Marshalls offers a full-line footwear department and a larger men’s

department. In fiscal 2005, T.J. Maxx continued to roll out expanded jewelry and accessories departments and Marshalls continued

to add expanded footwear departments, based on customers’ enthusiastic response to our testing these expanded departments in fiscal

2004. We believe these expanded offerings further differentiate the shopping experience at T.J. Maxx and Marshalls, driving traffic

to both chains and we expect to continue rolling out these expanded departments.
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In fiscal 2005, we launched a T.J. Maxx e-commerce website. We designed this website to offer online customers a shopping

experience similar to that of shopping in our stores. Our website offers a rapidly changing selection of quality, brand name fashions

priced below department and specialty store regular prices.

T.J. Maxx and Marshalls stores are generally located in suburban community shopping centers. T.J. Maxx stores average

approximately 30,000 square feet. Marshalls stores average approximately 31,000 square feet. We currently expect to add a net of 47

stores in fiscal 2006. Ultimately, we believe that T.J. Maxx and Marshalls together can operate approximately 1,800 stores in the

United States and Puerto Rico.

H O M E G O O D S

HomeGoods is our off-price retail chain that sells exclusively home fashions with a broad array of giftware, accent furniture,

lamps, rugs, accessories and seasonal merchandise for the home. Many of the HomeGoods stores are stand-alone stores; however, we

also combine HomeGoods stores with a T.J. Maxx or Marshalls store in a superstore format. We count the superstores as both a T.J.

Maxx or Marshalls store and a HomeGoods store. In fiscal 2005, we tested a superstore format of a HomeGoods store located beside

a T.J. Maxx or Marshalls store, with interior passageways providing access between the stores. This configuration is dual-branded

with both the T.J. Maxx or Marshalls logo and the HomeGoods logo.

HomeGoods, like T.J. Maxx, also launched an e-commerce website in fiscal 2005, with a similar off-price approach. The

HomeGoods website offers home fashions in rapidly changing assortments priced below department and specialty store regular prices.

Stand-alone HomeGoods stores average approximately 27,000 square feet. In superstores, which average approximately 52,000

square feet, we dedicate an average of 21,000 square feet to HomeGoods. The 216 stores open at year-end include 120 stand-alone

stores and 96 superstores. In fiscal 2006, we plan to add 40 stores, including 21 superstores. We believe that the U.S. market could

support approximately 650 HomeGoods stores in the long-term.

W I N N E R S  A N D  H O M E S E N S E

Winners is the leading off-price retailer in Canada, offering off-price brand name women’s apparel and shoes, lingerie,

accessories, home fashions, giftware, fine jewelry, menswear and children’s clothing. Winners operates HomeSense, our Canadian

off-price home-fashions chain, launched in fiscal 2002. Like our HomeGoods chain, HomeSense offers a wide and rapidly changing

assortment of off-price home fashions including giftware, accent furniture, lamps, rugs, accessories and seasonal merchandise. We

operate HomeSense in a stand-alone format, as well as a superstore format where a HomeSense store and a Winners store are

combined or operate side-by-side.

We currently operate a total of 168 Winners stores, which average approximately 29,000 square feet and 40 HomeSense stores,

which average approximately 24,000 square feet. We expect to add a net of 4 Winners stores and 17 HomeSense stores in fiscal 2006,

in both the stand-alone and superstore format. Ultimately, we believe the Canadian market can support approximately 200 Winners

stores and approximately 80 HomeSense stores.

T . K .  M A X X

T.K. Maxx is the only major off-price retailer in any European country. T.K. Maxx utilizes the same off-price strategies

employed by T.J. Maxx, Marshalls and Winners, and offers the same type of merchandise. We currently operate 170 T.K. Maxx

stores in the United Kingdom and Ireland. T.K. Maxx stores average approximately 28,000 square feet. T.K. Maxx opened 22 stores

in the United Kingdom and one store in Ireland in fiscal 2005. We currently expect to add a total of 23 stores in the United

Kingdom and Ireland in fiscal 2006. We believe that the U.K. and Ireland can support approximately 300 stores in the long term.

A . J .  W R I G H T

A.J. Wright, launched in fiscal 1999, brings our off-price concept to a different demographic customer, the moderate income

shopper. A.J. Wright stores offer brand-name family apparel, accessories, footwear, domestics, giftware, including toys and games,

and special, opportunistic purchases. A.J. Wright stores average approximately 26,000 square feet. We added a net of 31 A.J. Wright

stores in fiscal 2005 and operated 130 stores at fiscal year end. Our store growth in fiscal 2005 included opening five stores in

California, our first stores on the West coast. We currently expect to open 25 A.J. Wright stores in fiscal 2006. We believe this

developing business offers us the long-term opportunity to open over 1,000 A.J. Wright stores throughout the United States.
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B O B ’ S  S T O R E S

Bob’s Stores offers casual, family apparel and footwear with emphasis on men’s clothing, footwear, workwear, activewear, and

licensed team apparel. Bob’s Stores’ customer demographics span the moderate to upper-middle income bracket with a large percentage

of male shoppers. With large, high-volume stores, branded apparel selections, a value orientation and a loyal customer base, Bob’s Stores

shares many characteristics with our off-price chains. We purchased Bob’s Stores on December 24, 2003 and plan to grow Bob’s Stores

slowly in the short-term as we refine the concept. Bob’s Stores average approximately 46,000 square feet. We opened two Bob’s Stores

and closed one in fiscal 2005 for a total of 32 Bob’s Stores in the Northeast United States. We expect to open five additional Bob’s

Stores in fiscal 2006. We see the potential over time of growing Bob’s Stores to a chain of 400 stores in the United States.
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We operated stores in the following locations as of January 29, 2005:

T.J. Maxx Marshalls HomeGoods* A.J.Wright Bob’s Stores

Alabama 14 6 1 - -
Arizona 8 10 2 - -
Arkansas 7 - 1 - -
California 64 89 21 5 -
Colorado 10 6 - - -
Connecticut 25 23 9 6 12
Delaware 3 3 1 - -
District of Columbia 1 - - - -
Florida 53 54 16 - -
Georgia 29 28 7 - -
Idaho 5 1 1 - -
Illinois 35 39 13 10 -
Indiana 13 8 - 8 -
Iowa 6 2 - - -
Kansas 5 3 - - -
Kentucky 10 4 3 2 -
Louisiana 7 9 - - -
Maine 6 3 3 1 -
Maryland 10 19 5 5 -
Massachusetts 45 45 21 18 10
Michigan 30 20 8 10 -
Minnesota 13 11 5 - -
Mississippi 5 2 - - -
Missouri 13 12 6 - -
Montana 3 - - - -
Nebraska 2 1 - - -
Nevada 5 6 3 - -
New Hampshire 14 8 5 1 3
New Jersey 29 39 18 7 3
New Mexico 3 2 - - -
New York 46 49 17 14 3
North Carolina 23 15 6 1 -
North Dakota 3 - - - -
Ohio 36 17 8 15 -
Oklahoma 3 1 - - -
Oregon 5 4 - - -
Pennsylvania 39 28 6 8 -
Puerto Rico - 14 5 - -
Rhode Island 5 6 4 4 1
South Carolina 16 8 3 2 -
South Dakota 1 - - - -
Tennessee 21 14 2 4 -
Texas 30 50 4 - -
Utah 8 - 1 - -
Vermont 4 1 1 - -
Virginia 28 22 4 8 -
Washington 13 8 - - -
West Virginia 2 2 1 - -
Wisconsin 14 5 5 1 -
Wyoming 1 - - - -

Total Stores 771 697 216 130 32

* The HomeGoods store locations include the HomeGoods portion of a superstore.

Winners operated 168 stores in Canada: 22 in Alberta, 20 in British Columbia, 5 in Manitoba, 3 in New Brunswick, 2 in

Newfoundland, 4 in Nova Scotia, 76 in Ontario, 1 on Prince Edward Island, 30 in Quebec and 5 in Saskatchewan.

HomeSense operated 40 stores in Canada: 6 in Alberta, 3 in British Columbia, 1 in New Brunswick, 26 in Ontario and 4 in

Quebec. The HomeSense store locations include the HomeSense portion of a superstore.

T.K. Maxx operated 165 stores in the United Kingdom and 5 stores in the Republic of Ireland.
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E M P L O Y E E S

At January 29, 2005, we had approximately 113,000 employees, many of whom work less than 40 hours per week. In

addition, we hire temporary employees during the peak back-to-school and holiday seasons.

C O M P E T I T I O N

The retail apparel and home fashion business is highly competitive. Our customers focus upon fashion, quality, price, merchandise

selection and freshness, brand name recognition and, to a lesser degree, store location. We compete with local, regional and national

department, specialty and off-price stores. We also compete to some degree with any retailer that sells apparel and home fashions in stores,

through catalogues or over the internet. We purchase most of our inventory opportunistically and compete for that merchandise with

other national and regional off-price apparel and outlet stores. We also compete with other retailers for store locations.

C R E D I T

Our stores operate primarily on a cash-and-carry basis. Each chain accepts credit sales through programs offered by banks and

others. While we do not operate our own customer credit card program or maintain customer credit receivables, a TJX Visa card is

offered through a major bank for our domestic divisions. The rewards program associated with this card is partially funded by TJX.

B U Y I N G A N D D I S T R I B U T I O N

We operate a centralized buying organization that services both the T.J. Maxx and Marshalls chains, while each of our other

chains has its own centralized buying organization. All of our chains are serviced through their own distribution networks.

T R A D E M A R K S

Our principal trademarks and service marks, which are T.J. Maxx, Marshalls, HomeGoods, Winners, HomeSense,

T.K. Maxx, A.J. Wright and Bob’s Stores, are registered in relevant countries. Our rights in these trademarks and service marks

endure for as long as they are used.

S A F E H A R B O R S T A T E M E N T S U N D E R T H E P R I VA T E S E C U R I T I E S L I T I G A T I O N R E F O R M A C T

O F 1 9 9 5

Various statements made in this annual report, including some of the statements made under Item 1, ‘‘Business,’’ Item 7,

‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,’’ and Item 8, ‘‘Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data,’’ and in our 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders under ‘‘Letter to Shareholders,’’ ‘‘Review of Operations’’

and ‘‘Financial Graphs’’ are forward-looking and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. All statements that address activities,

events or developments that we intend, expect or believe may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. The following are

some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements:

— Our ability to continue our successful expansion of our operations including expansion of our store base across all chains at the

projected rate, and our ability to continue to increase both total sales and same store sales and to manage rapid growth.

— Risks of expansion of existing businesses in new markets and of new businesses and of entry into traditional retail businesses

and new channels of distribution such as e-commerce.

— Our ability to implement our opportunistic inventory strategies successfully including availability, selection and acquisition of

appropriate merchandise in appropriate amounts on favorable terms and at the appropriate times.

— Our ability to effectively manage our inventories including effective and timely distribution to stores and maintenance of

appropriate mix and levels of inventory and effective management of pricing and markdowns.

— Consumer confidence, demand, spending habits and buying preferences.

— Effects of unseasonable weather on consumer demand.

— Competitive factors, including pricing and promotional activities of competitors and in the retail industry generally, changes

in competitive practices, new competitors, competition from alternative distribution channels and excess retail capacity.

— Availability of adequate numbers of store and distribution center locations for lease in desirable locations on suitable terms.

— Factors affecting our recruitment and employment of associates including our ability to recruit, develop and retain quality sales

associates and management personnel in adequate numbers; labor contract negotiations; and effects of immigration, wage,

entitlement and other governmental regulation of employment.

— Factors affecting expenses including pressure on wages, health care costs and other benefits, pension plan returns, energy and

fuel costs, availability and costs of insurance and actual liabilities with respect to casualty insurance.

— Success of our acquisition and divestiture activities.

— Our ability to successfully implement new technologies and systems and adequate disaster recovery systems.
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— Our ability to continue to generate cash flows to support capital expansion, general operating activities and stock repurchase

programs.

— General economic conditions in countries and regions where we operate that affect consumer demand including consumer

credit availability, consumer debt levels and delinquencies and default rates, financial market performance, inflation, commod-

ity prices and unemployment.

— Potential disruptions due to wars, other military actions, terrorist incidents, weather-related events and natural disasters.

— Changes in currency and exchange rates in countries where we operate or where we buy merchandise.

— Import risks, including potential disruptions in supply, duties, tariffs and quotas on imported merchandise, strikes and other

events affecting delivery; and economic, political or other problems in countries from or through which merchandise is

imported.

— Adverse outcomes for any significant litigation.

— Changes in laws and regulations and accounting rules and principles.

— Our ability to maintain adequate and effective internal control over financial reporting, given the limitations inherent in

internal control systems.

We do not undertake to publicly update or revise our forward-looking statements even if experience or future changes make it

clear that any projected results expressed or implied therein will not be realized.

S E C F I L I N G S

Copies of our annual reports on Form 10-K, proxy statements, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on

Form 8-K, and any amendments to those filings, are available free of charge on our website, www.tjx.com under ‘‘SEC Filings,’’ as

soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed electronically. They are also available free of charge from TJX Investor Relations,

770 Cochituate Road, Framingham, Massachusetts, 01701.

C O R P O R A T E G O V E R N A N C E I N F O R M A T I O N

Also available on the ‘‘Corporate Governance’’ section of the TJX corporate website set forth above and in print free of

charge upon request sent to TJX Investor Relations at the above address are our Code of Conduct, our Code of Ethics for TJX

Executives, including any waiver from or amendment to the Code of Ethics given or made from time to time, our Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics for Directors, information about our Vendor Compliance Program, our Corporate Governance Principles and

Charters for our Board Committees.
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I T E M  2 . P R O P E R T I E S

We lease virtually all of our store locations, generally for 10 years with an option to extend the lease for one or more 5-year

periods. We have the right to terminate some of these leases before the expiration date under specified circumstances and for

specified payments.

The following is a summary of our primary distribution centers and administration office locations as of January 29, 2005.

Square footage information for the distribution centers represents total ‘‘ground cover’’ of the facility. Square footage information

for office space represents total space occupied:

Distribution Centers

T.J. Maxx Worcester, Massachusetts (500,000 s.f.-owned)

Evansville, Indiana (983,000 s.f.-owned)

Las Vegas, Nevada (713,000 s.f. shared with Marshalls-owned)

Charlotte, North Carolina (600,000 s.f.-owned)

Pittston Township, Pennsylvania (1,017,000 s.f.-owned)

Marshalls Decatur, Georgia (780,000 s.f.-owned

and 189,000 s.f.-leased)

Woburn, Massachusetts (560,000 s.f.-leased)

Bridgewater, Virginia (672,000 s.f.-leased)

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (998,000 s.f.-leased)

Winners and Brampton, Ontario (506,000 s.f.-leased)

HomeSense Mississauga, Ontario (667,000 s.f.-leased)

HomeGoods Mansfield, Massachusetts (343,000 s.f.-leased)

Brownsburg, Indiana (805,000 s.f.-owned)

Bloomfield, Connecticut (443,000 s.f.-owned)

T.K. Maxx Milton Keynes, England (108,000 s.f.-leased)

Wakefield, England (176,000 s.f.-leased)

Stoke, England (261,000 s.f.-leased)

A.J. Wright Fall River, Massachusetts (501,000 s.f.-owned)

South Bend, Indiana (542,000 s.f.-owned)

Bob’s Stores Meriden, Connecticut (200,000 s.f.-leased)

Office Space

TJX, T.J. Maxx, Framingham and (1,139,000 s.f.-leased

Marshalls, Westboro, Massachusetts in several buildings)

HomeGoods,

A.J. Wright

Bob’s Stores Meriden, Connecticut (34,000 s.f.-leased)

Winners and Mississauga, Ontario (138,000 s.f.-leased)

HomeSense

T.K. Maxx Watford, England (61,000 s.f.-leased)
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The table below indicates the approximate average store size as well as the gross square footage of stores and distribution

centers, by division, as of January 29, 2005.

Total Square Feet

Average Distribution

(In Thousands) Store Size Stores Centers

T.J. Maxx 30,000 22,766 3,813

Marshalls 31,000 21,885 3,199

Winners (1) 29,000 4,880 1,173

HomeSense (2) 24,000 975 -

HomeGoods (3) 25,000 5,354 1,591

T.K. Maxx 28,000 4,842 545

A.J. Wright 26,000 3,345 1,043

Bob’s Stores 46,000 1,461 200

Total 65,508 11,564

(1) Distribution centers currently service both Winners and HomeSense stores.

(2) A HomeSense stand-alone store averages 25,000 square feet, while HomeSense in a superstore format averages 23,000 square feet.

(3) A HomeGoods stand-alone store averages 27,000 square feet, while HomeGoods in a superstore format averages 21,000 square feet.

I T E M  3 . L E G A L  P R O C E E D I N G S

None.

I T E M  4 . S U B M I S S I O N  O F  M A T T E R S  T O  A  V O T E  O F  S E C U R I T Y  H O L D E R S

There was no matter submitted to a vote of TJX’s security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.

I T E M  4 A . E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R S  O F  T H E  R E G I S T R A N T

Name Age Office and Employment During Last Five Years

Arnold Barron 57 Senior Executive Vice President, Group President, TJX since March 2004. Executive Vice

President, Chief Operating Officer of The Marmaxx Group from 2000 to 2004. Senior Vice

President, Group Executive of TJX from 1996 to 2000. Senior Vice President, General

Merchandise Manager of the T.J. Maxx Division from 1993 to 1996; Senior Vice President,

Director of Stores, 1984 to 1993; various store operation positions with TJX, 1979 to 1984.

Bernard Cammarata 65 Chairman of the Board since 1999 and Chief Executive Officer of TJX from 1989 to 2000.

President of TJX 1989 to 1999 and Chairman of TJX’s T.J. Maxx Division from 1986 to

1995 and of The Marmaxx Group from 1995 to 2000. Executive Vice President of TJX from

1986 to 1989; President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of TJX’s former TJX

subsidiary from 1987 to 1989 and President of TJX’s T.J. Maxx Division from 1976 to 1986.

Donald G. Campbell 53 Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative and Business Development Officer since

March 2004. Executive Vice President-Finance from 1996 to 2004 and Chief Financial Officer

of TJX from 1989 to 2004. Senior Vice President-Finance, from 1989 to 1996. Senior

Financial Executive of TJX, 1988 to 1989; Senior Vice President-Finance and Administration,

Zayre Stores Division, 1987 to 1988; Vice President and Corporate Controller of TJX, 1985

to 1987; various financial positions with TJX, 1973 to 1985.

Edmond J. English 51 Chief Executive Officer of TJX since 2000 and President and Director of TJX since 1999.

Chairman of The Marmaxx Group from 2000 to 2001 and from 2002 to 2004. Chief

Operating Officer from 1999 to 2000, Senior Vice President and Group Executive from 1998

to 1999; Executive Vice President, Merchandising, Planning and Allocation of The Marmaxx

Group from 1997 to 1998; Senior Vice President, Merchandising from 1995 to 1997; Vice

President, Senior Merchandise Manager of the T.J. Maxx Division from 1991 to 1995; and has

held various merchandising positions with TJX, from 1983 to 1991.

10



Name Age Office and Employment During Last Five Years

Peter A. Maich 57 Senior Executive Vice President, Group President, TJX since March 2004. Executive Vice

President, Group Executive of TJX from 2000 to 2004. Executive Vice President, Merchandising,

The Marmaxx Group from 1996 to 2000; President of the T.J. Maxx Division, 1994 to 1996;

various senior merchandising and operations positions at T.J. Maxx from 1985 to 1994.

Jeffrey G. Naylor 46 Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, TJX since March 2004. Executive

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of TJX effective February 2, 2004. Senior Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer at Big Lots, Inc. from 2001 to January 2004. Senior Vice

President, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer of Dade Behring, Inc. from 2000 to

2001. Vice President, Controller of The Limited, Inc., from 1998 to 2000.

Alexander W. Smith 52 Senior Executive Vice President, Group President, TJX since March 2004. Executive Vice

President, Group Executive, International, of TJX from 2001 to 2004. Managing Director of T.K.

Maxx from 1995 to 2001. Managing Director of Lane Crawford from 1994 to 1995. Managing

Director of Owen plc from 1990 to 1993 and Merchandise Director from 1987 to 1990.

All officers hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board in June 2005 and until their successors are elected, or

appointed, and qualified.

Part II

I T E M  5 . M A R K E T F O R T H E R E G I S T R A N T ’ S C O M M O N S T O C K A N D R E L A T E D S E C U R I T Y

H O L D E R M A T T E R S ,  I S S U E R R E P U R C H A S E S O F E Q U I T Y S E C U R I T I E S

Price Range of Common Stock

TJX’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Symbol: TJX). The quarterly high and low trading stock

prices for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 are as follows:

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004

Quarter High Low High Low

First $26.12 $22.51 $19.30 $15.54

Second $26.82 $21.53 $20.24 $17.39

Third $24.05 $20.64 $22.08 $18.71

Fourth $25.50 $23.36 $23.81 $20.51

The approximate number of common shareholders at January 29, 2005 was 92,690.

TJX declared four quarterly dividends of $.045 per share for fiscal 2005 and $.035 per share for fiscal 2004.
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Information on Share Repurchases

The number of shares of common stock repurchased by TJX during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 and the average price

paid per share is as follows:

Maximum Number
(or Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value)
Shares Purchased of Shares that

as Part of May Yet be
Number of Shares Average Price Publicly Announced Purchased Under

 Repurchased Paid Per Share Plan or Program Plans or Programs

October 31, 2004

through November 27, 2004 334,000 $24.06 334,000 $692,804,906

November 28, 2004

through January 1, 2005 1,154,300 $24.69 1,154,300 $664,305,229

January 2, 2005

through January 29, 2005 2,842,000 $24.94 2,842,000 $593,433,096

Total: 4,330,300 4,330,300

In May 2004 we completed our $1 billion share repurchase program announced in 2002, and on May 24, 2004 we announced

a new $1 billion share repurchase program. As of January 29, 2005 we had repurchased 17.7 million shares at a cost of $406.6 million

under our $1 billion share repurchase program announced in May 2004.
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I T E M  6 . S E L E C T E D  F I N A N C I A L  D A T A

Selected Financial Data (Continuing Operations)

Fiscal Year Ended JanuaryAmounts In Thousands

Except Per Share Amounts 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(53 weeks)

Income statement and per share data:

Net sales $14,913,483 $13,327,938 $11,981,207 $10,708,998 $9,579,006

Income from continuing operations $ 664,144 $ 658,365 $ 578,388 $ 540,397 $ 538,066

Weighted average common shares for

diluted earnings per share

calculation (1) 512,649 529,779 554,645 573,173 578,392

Diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations (1) $ 1.30 $ 1.25 $ 1.05 $ .96 $ .93

Cash dividends declared per share $ .18 $ .14 $ .12 $ .09 $ .08

Balance sheet data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 307,187 $ 246,403 $ 492,330 $ 492,776 $ 132,535

Working capital 701,008 761,228 730,795 857,316 585,685

Total assets 5,075,473 4,396,767 3,940,489 3,595,743 2,932,283

Capital expenditures 429,133 409,037 396,724 449,444 257,005

Long-term obligations (2) 598,540 692,321 693,764 702,379 319,372

Shareholders’ equity 1,653,482 1,552,388 1,409,147 1,340,698 1,218,712

Other financial data:

After-tax return on average shareholders’

equity 41.4% 44.5% 42.1% 42.2% 46.0%

Total debt as a percentage of total

capitalization (3) 29.7% 31.0% 33.5% 34.4% 22.7%

Stores in operation at year-end:

T.J. Maxx 771 745 713 687 661

Marshalls 697 673 629 582 535

Winners 168 160 146 131 117

T.K. Maxx 170 147 123 101 74

HomeGoods 216 182 142 112 81

A.J. Wright 130 99 75 45 25

HomeSense 40 25 15 7 -

Bob’s Stores 32 31 - - -

Total 2,224 2,062 1,843 1,665 1,493

Selling Square Footage at year-end:

T.J. Maxx 18,033 17,385 16,646 15,993 15,289

Marshalls 17,511 16,716 15,625 14,475 13,369

Winners 3,811 3,576 3,261 2,885 2,525

T.K. Maxx 3,491 2,841 2,282 1,852 1,305

HomeGoods 4,159 3,548 2,830 2,279 1,667

A.J. Wright 2,606 1,967 1,498 916 516

HomeSense 747 468 282 120 -

Bob’s Stores 1,166 1,124 - - -

Total 51,524 47,625 42,424 38,520 34,671

(1) Diluted earnings per share calculations for fiscal years ended January 31, 2004 and prior have been restated in accordance with EITF Issue No.04-08. See Note A

to the consolidated financial statements at ‘‘Earnings Per Share.’’

(2) Includes long-term debt, exclusive of current installments and obligation under capital lease, less portion due within one year.

(3) Total capitalization includes shareholders’ equity, short-term debt, long-term debt and capital lease obligation, including current maturities.
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I T E M  7 . M A N A G E M E N T ’ S D I S C U S S I O N A N D A N A L Y S I S O F

F I N A N C I A L C O N D I T I O N A N D R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S

The following discussion contains forward-looking information and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated

financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. Our actual results could differ materially from the results

contemplated by these forward-looking statements due to various factors, including those discussed in Item 1 of this report under the

section entitled ‘‘Safe Harbor Statements under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.’’

R E S U LT S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S

Overview: Our financial performance for the 52-week fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2005) as compared to our

53-week fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 (fiscal 2004) is summarized below.

— Net sales for fiscal 2005 were $14.9 billion, a 12% increase over the 53-week fiscal period last year.

— Driven by a 4% same store sales increase at Marmaxx, our internal combination of T.J. Maxx and Marshalls, consolidated same

store sales increased 5% in fiscal 2005 over the prior year on a comparable 52-to 52-week basis, with approximately 11/2

percentage points of this increase coming from the favorable effect of currency exchange rates of our Winners and T.K. Maxx

businesses. 

— We increased our number of stores by 8% in fiscal 2005 ending the fiscal year with 2,224 stores in operation. Selling square

footage also grew by 8% in fiscal 2005.

— Net income for fiscal 2005 was $664.1 million compared to $658.4 million in the 53-week period last year. Fiscal 2005 net

income reflects the impact of a fourth quarter, one-time, non-cash, after-tax charge of $19.3 million, or $.04 per share,

relating to lease accounting (see Note A to the consolidated financial statements) while fiscal 2004 includes the benefit of the

53rd week, estimated at $24.0 million (after-tax), or $.05 per share. Excluding these items, net income would be $683.4 mil-

lion in fiscal 2005 as compared to $634.4 million in fiscal 2004, an 8% increase. We believe this presentation reflects our results

on a more comparable basis, and is useful in understanding the underlying earnings trends in our business.

— Diluted earnings per share was $1.30 in fiscal 2005 as compared to $1.25 per share in the prior year. Excluding the items noted

above, diluted earnings per share would have been $1.34 in fiscal 2005 compared to $1.20 in fiscal 2004, or an increase of 12%.

We believe this presentation reflects our earnings per share on a more comparable basis, and is useful in understanding the

underlying earnings trends in our business.

— Our reported operating results led to an after-tax return on average shareholders’ equity of 41% for the fiscal year ended

January 29, 2005.

— Our pre-tax margin (the ratio of pre-tax income to net sales) declined from 8.0% in fiscal 2004 to 7.2% in fiscal 2005. The

decline was driven by cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs, which increased .7% as a percent of sales over last

year, with the cumulative charge for the adjustment of our lease accounting practices amounting to .2% of this increase. In

addition, .2% of the increase was due to the favorable impact of the 53rd week on the prior year’s cost of sales ratio. Selling,

general and administrative costs were up .1% as a percent of sales in fiscal 2005 over the prior year.

— We continued to generate strong cash flows from operations which allowed us to fund our stock repurchase program as well as

our capital investment needs. During fiscal 2005, we repurchased 25.1 million of our shares at a cost of $588 million.

— Average per store inventories, including inventory on hand at our distribution centers were up 1% at the end of fiscal 2005 as

compared to the prior year end period. Our liquid inventory position enhances our ability to take advantage of buying

opportunities in the marketplace.

The following is a summary of the operating results of TJX at the consolidated level. This discussion is followed by an

overview of operating results by segment. All references to earnings per share are diluted earnings per share unless otherwise

indicated and diluted earnings per share for prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the new accounting rules relating to our

contingently convertible debt. See Note A to our consolidated financial statements.

Net sales: Net sales for TJX for our fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 totaled $14.9 billion, an 11.9% increase over sales of

$13.3 billion for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004. Our reporting period for fiscal 2004 included 53 weeks compared to

52 weeks in both fiscal 2005 and the fiscal year ended January 25, 2003 (fiscal 2003). The 53rd week in fiscal 2004 added incremental

sales of approximately $200 million, as compared to fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2003. The net sales for fiscal 2004 of $13.3 billion

represented an 11.2% increase over sales of $12.0 billion for our fiscal year ended January 25, 2003.

The 12% increase in net sales for fiscal 2005 over fiscal 2004, reflects approximately 6% from new stores, 5% from same store

sales growth and 2% from the acquisition of Bob’s Stores, partially offset by approximately a 1% reduction to the growth rate due to
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fiscal 2005 having one less week than fiscal 2004. Bob’s Stores was acquired on December 24, 2003 and our sales results for fiscal

2004 include Bob’s Stores from the date of acquisition as compared to a full year for fiscal 2005. The 11% increase in net sales for

fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003 includes approximately 8% from new stores, 1% from same store sales growth, with the balance primarily

due to the 53rd week. Sales growth in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 were favorably impacted by foreign currency exchange rates.

New stores are our major source of sales growth. Our consolidated store count increased by 7.9% in fiscal 2005 and 10.2% in

fiscal 2004 over the respective prior year period. Our selling square footage increased by 8.2% in fiscal 2005 and 9.6% in fiscal 2004,

in each case over the prior year. Bob’s Stores is excluded from fiscal 2004 store count and selling square footage calculations, as it was

acquired late in fiscal 2004. Our acquisition of Bob’s Stores on December 24, 2003, added 31 units as of the end of fiscal 2004. Net

sales for Bob’s Stores are included in our results from the date of acquisition. We expect to add 161 stores (net of store closings) in the

fiscal year ending January 28, 2006 (fiscal 2006), a 7% projected increase in our consolidated store base, and we expect to increase

our selling square footage base by 8%.

Net sales for fiscal 2005 reflect strong demand for jewelry and accessories, women’s apparel and footwear, partially offset by

weaker demand for men’s apparel and home fashions. The 5% growth in consolidated same store sales for fiscal 2005 over the prior

year was driven by a 4% same store sales increase at Marmaxx. Marmaxx continued its program of expanding certain departments in

its stores and ended the year with 303 T.J. Maxx stores with expanded jewelry/accessories departments and 67 Marshalls stores with

expanded footwear departments. These initiatives were significant factors in Marmaxx achieving a 4% same store sales increase in

fiscal 2005. Consolidated same store sales growth of 1% in fiscal 2004 reflects the impact of unseasonable weather in the first half of

that year. Same store sales growth in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 benefited by approximately 11/2 percentage points from foreign

currency exchange rates.

We define same store sales to be sales of those stores that have been in operation for all or a portion of two consecutive fiscal

years, or in other words, stores that are starting their third fiscal year of operation. We classify a store as a new store until it meets the

same store criteria. We determine which stores are included in the same store sales calculation at the beginning of a fiscal year and

the classification remains constant throughout that year, unless a store is closed. We calculate same store sales results by comparing the

current and prior year weekly periods that are most closely aligned. Relocated stores and stores that are increased in size are generally

classified in the same way as the original store and we believe that the impact of these stores on the same store percentage is

immaterial. Consolidated and divisional same store sales are calculated in U.S. dollars. We also show divisional same store sales in

local currency for our foreign divisions, because this removes the effect of changes in currency exchange rates, and we believe it is a

more appropriate measure of their operating performance.

The following table sets forth our consolidated operating results as a percentage of net sales:

Fiscal Year Ended January

2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs 76.3 75.6 75.8

Selling, general and administrative expenses 16.3 16.2 16.2

Interest expense, net .2 .2 .2

Income before provision for income taxes 7.2% 8.0% 7.8%

Cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs: Cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs, as a percentage of net

sales was 76.3% in fiscal 2005, 75.6% in fiscal 2004 and 75.8% in fiscal 2003. Our consolidated merchandise margin was essentially

flat to the prior year. Throughout fiscal 2005, the Marmaxx division continued to effectively execute our merchandising and

inventory management strategies, maintaining a liquid inventory position and buying close to need, all of which led to improved

merchandise margin at this division. However, this improved merchandise margin at Marmaxx in fiscal 2005 was offset by reduced

merchandise margin at our other divisions, most of which experienced higher markdowns. The increase in this ratio in fiscal 2005

includes a .2% increase due to a $30.7 million non-cash charge ($19.3 million after-tax) to conform our lease accounting practices to

generally accepted accounting principles. See Note A to the consolidated financial statements under the caption ‘‘Lease Account-

ing.’’ This ratio in fiscal 2005, as compared to fiscal 2004, also reflects an increase of approximately .2% due to the absence of the

53rd week in fiscal 2005 as the sales volume from the extra week helped lever certain fixed costs in fiscal 2004. The balance of the
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increase in the ratio in fiscal 2005 is primarily due to higher cost of sales ratios at divisions other than Marmaxx, which represent a

greater proportion of the consolidated results in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.

The improvement in the cost of sales ratio in fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003 reflects a significant improvement in merchandise

margin, primarily in the second half of fiscal 2004. The improved merchandise margin contributed to an approximate .6% reduction

in our consolidated cost of sales ratio. Successful execution of our inventory and merchandising strategies and buying closer to need

led to this improvement. The contribution from improved merchandise margin was partially offset by higher store occupancy costs as

a percentage of sales due to lower-than-planned same store sales growth and higher distribution costs, as a result of opening our new

T.J. Maxx distribution facility in Pittston, Pennsylvania. Store occupancy costs as a percentage of net sales increased by .3% for fiscal

2004 over fiscal 2003 and distribution costs as a percentage of net sales increased by .1%. The cost of sales ratio was favorably

impacted by the 53rd week in the fiscal 2004 reporting period, estimated to be a .2% improvement in this ratio, as the sales volume

from this extra week helped lever certain fixed costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses: Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 16.3%

in fiscal 2005 and 16.2% in both fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003. The increase in this ratio in fiscal 2005 was primarily due to a .1%

increase in advertising costs as a percentage of sales as a result of the inclusion of Bob’s Stores for a full fiscal year in our consolidated

results. Bob’s Stores operates with a higher advertising cost ratio than our off-price divisions. In comparing fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2003,

store payroll costs as a percentage of sales increased as a result of the delevering impact of less-than-planned sales, but this increase in

the expense ratio was offset by the effect of higher costs in fiscal 2003 due to a pre-tax $16 million litigation charge. The litigation

charge was for the estimated cost of settling claims related to four California lawsuits that alleged TJX had improperly classified store

managers and assistant store managers as exempt from California overtime laws. The lawsuits were settled in fiscal 2004 for slightly

less than $16 million.

Interest expense, net: Interest expense, net of interest income, was $25.8 million in fiscal 2005, $27.3 million in fiscal 2004 and

$25.4 million in fiscal 2003. Interest income was $7.7 million in fiscal 2005, $6.5 million in fiscal 2004 and $10.5 million in fiscal

2003. The reduction in interest income in fiscal 2005 and 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was due to lower cash balances and lower

interest rates.

Income taxes: Our effective annual income tax rate was 38.5% in fiscal 2005, 38.4% in fiscal 2004 and 38.3% in fiscal 2003.

The increase in the effective income tax rate in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 and the increase in this rate in fiscal 2004 as

compared to fiscal 2003 were primarily due to increases in state income tax rates. The effective income tax rate for fiscal 2003 also

reflects the favorable effect of the tax benefit for payment of executive retirement benefits in exchange for the termination of split-

dollar arrangements as described in Note I to the consolidated financial statements.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA) enacted on October 22, 2004 will allow companies to repatriate the

undistributed foreign earnings of their foreign operations in fiscal 2006 at an effective rate of 5.25%. The Company is evaluating the

impact of the act on TJX.

Net income: Net income was $664.1 million in fiscal 2005, $658.4 million in fiscal 2004 and $578.4 million in fiscal 2003.

Net income per share was $1.30 in fiscal 2005, $1.25 in fiscal 2004 and $1.05 in fiscal 2003. Diluted earnings per share reflect the

impact of retroactive implementation of a new accounting pronouncement that requires the inclusion of shares associated with

contingently convertible debt in the calculation of diluted earnings per share even if the contingencies have not been met. This

accounting change had an adverse effect of $.04 on our diluted earnings per share in fiscal 2005 and $.03 on previously reported

diluted earnings per share in both fiscal 2004 and 2003. Net income for fiscal 2005 includes the after-tax effect of the $30.7 million

cumulative pre-tax charge associated with our lease accounting practices, which reduced net income in fiscal 2005 by $19.3 million,

or $.04 per share. We estimate that the 53rd week in fiscal 2004 added approximately $24 million to net income and $.05 to our

earnings per share, and that favorable changes in currency exchange rates during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 added approximately $.02

to our earnings per share in each year. The increase in earnings per share, on a percentage basis in all periods, increased more than

the related earnings as a result of the impact of our share repurchase program. During fiscal 2005 we repurchased 25.1 million shares

of our stock at a cost of $588 million and we plan to continue our share repurchase program in fiscal 2006 with planned purchases of

approximately $600 million.
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Segment information: The following is a discussion of the operating results of our business segments. We consider each of our

operating divisions to be a segment. We evaluate the performance of our segments based on ‘‘segment profit or loss,’’ which we

define as pre-tax income before general corporate expense and interest expense, net. ‘‘Segment profit or loss,’’ as defined by TJX,

may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other entities. In addition, this measure of performance should not be

considered an alternative to net income or cash flows from operating activities as an indicator of our performance or as a measure of

liquidity. More detailed information about our segments, including a reconciliation of ‘‘segment profit or loss’’ to ‘‘income before

provision for income taxes’’ can be found in Note N to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment profit or loss for fiscal 2005 includes each segment’s share of the cumulative pre-tax charge relating to lease

accounting. See Note A to the consolidated financial statements under the caption ‘‘Lease Accounting.’’

M A R M A X X :

Fiscal Year Ended January

Dollars In Millions 2005 2004  2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales $10,489.5 $9,937.2 $9,485.6

Segment profit $ 1,023.5 $ 961.6 $ 887.9

Segment profit as % of net sales 9.8% 9.7% 9.4%

Percent increase (decrease) in same store sales 4% (1)% 2%

Stores in operation at end of period 1,468 1,418 1,342

Selling square footage at end of period (in thousands) 35,544 34,101 32,271

Marmaxx posted a 4% same store sales increase in fiscal 2005, compared to a 1% decrease in same store sales for fiscal 2004.

Same store sales growth was driven by strong sales in the jewelry, accessories and footwear categories, as well as women’s sportswear,

with fashion trends in these categories helping to drive customer demand. Sales for men’s apparel and home fashions in fiscal 2005

were soft. Same store sales benefited from the continuation of the Marmaxx program whereby certain departments in the T.J. Maxx

and Marshalls stores were expanded. Marmaxx ended fiscal 2005 with 303 T.J. Maxx stores with expanded jewelry and accessories

departments and 67 Marshalls stores with expanded footwear departments as compared to 5 T.J. Maxx stores with expanded jewelry

and accessories departments and 5 Marshalls stores with expanded footwear departments at the end of fiscal 2004. These initiatives

drove overall sales in the stores with the expanded departments in addition to increasing sales in these categories and were significant

factors in Marmaxx achieving a 4% same stores sales increase in fiscal 2005. Segment profit increased to 9.8% in fiscal 2005 from

9.7% in fiscal 2004, despite the impact of a $16.8 million charge for its share of the cumulative impact of the lease accounting

adjustment. The lease accounting charge reduced fiscal 2005 segment profit margin by .2%. Marmaxx continued to effectively

execute its merchandising and inventory strategies, aggressively managing the liquidity of its inventory and buying and shipping

goods close to need, all of which led to strong markon and improved merchandise margins. For fiscal 2005, merchandise margins

increased .4%. Marmaxx also continued to effectively manage expenses in fiscal 2005. These improvements in segment profit margin

were partially offset by an increase in occupancy costs of .3% as a percentage of sales, .2% of which represents the impact of the lease

accounting charge. Segment profit and segment profit margin for fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 is also impacted by the

benefit of the 53rd week in the fiscal 2004 reporting period described below.

The increase in segment profit and profit margin for fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 reflects Marmaxx’s sharp execution

of its merchandising and inventory strategies and effective expense controls in fiscal 2004. Marmaxx was able to buy closer to need in

fiscal 2004, leading to a strong markon and an improved merchandise margin, especially in the second half of the year. The 53rd

week in fiscal 2004 had an estimated favorable impact of .2% on the segment profit margin for that year, as the sales volume from this

extra week helped lever certain fixed costs. The increase in segment profit and segment profit margin in fiscal 2004 as compared to

fiscal 2003 also reflect the effect of higher costs in fiscal 2003 due to the $16 million litigation charge discussed above.

We added a net of 50 new stores (T.J. Maxx or Marshalls) in fiscal 2005 and increased total selling square footage of the

division by 4%. We expect to open a net of 47 new stores in fiscal 2006, increasing the Marmaxx store base by 3% and to increase the

selling square footage of the division by 4%. We plan to add expanded jewelry and accessories departments in approximately 267

existing T.J. Maxx stores as well as all new T.J. Maxx stores and to add approximately 56 expanded footwear departments in existing

and new Marshalls stores.
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W I N N E R S  A N D  H O M E S E N S E :

Fiscal Year Ended January

U.S. Dollars In Millions 2005 2004  2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales $1,285.4 $1,076.3 $793.2

Segment profit $ 108.9 $ 106.7 $ 85.3

Segment profit as % of net sales 8.5% 9.9% 10.8%

Percent increase in same store sales

U.S. currency 10% 19% 5%

Local currency 4% 4% 5%

Stores in operation at end of period

Winners 168 160 146

HomeSense 40 25 15

Selling square footage at end of period (in thousands)

Winners 3,811 3,576 3,261

HomeSense 747 468 282

Same store sales (in local currency) for Winners and HomeSense, our Canadian businesses, increased by 4% in both fiscal 2005

and fiscal 2004. Segment profit and segment profit as a percentage of net sales for fiscal 2005 include a $3.5 million charge for this

division’s share of the cumulative impact of the lease accounting adjustment. The growth in the Winners segment profit in fiscal

2005 over the prior year was due to favorable currency exchange rates. The segment profit margin for fiscal 2005 of 8.5% was 1.4%

below fiscal 2004 segment profit margin, primarily due to lower merchandise margins, which decreased .9% from the prior year,

primarily driven by markdowns. Sales in the second half of fiscal 2005 slowed considerably from the first half, primarily due to

unseasonable weather and a promotional retail environment. This, along with Winners buying based on the strength of its first half

sales, resulted in excess inventories, requiring the division to take aggressive markdowns to clear merchandise in the second half of

the year. The lease accounting charge reduced segment profit margin by .2% with the balance of the segment profit margin

reduction coming largely from the increasing impact of HomeSense on the division’s combined results. HomeSense is at an earlier

stage of development and therefore operates with higher expense ratios than does Winners.

Winners and HomeSense segment profit in fiscal 2004 increased 25% over the segment profit in fiscal 2003. Approximately

two-thirds of the increase in segment profit in fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003 was due to changes in currency exchange rates. Winners

and HomeSense segment profit margin for fiscal 2004 was below that of fiscal 2003. This reduction reflects increased markdowns at

Winners and the increasing impact of HomeSense on their combined results.

We opened 8 Winners stores and 15 HomeSense stores in fiscal 2005, and expanded selling square footage in Canada by 13%.

We expect to add a net of 4 Winners and 17 HomeSense stores in fiscal 2006, increasing our total Canadian store base by 10%, and

increasing selling square footage by 10%. The store counts include the Winners portion and HomeSense portion of this division’s

superstores which either combine a Winners store with a HomeSense store or operates them side-by-side. As of January 29, 2005 we

operated 11 superstores and expect to have a total of 23 superstores at the end of fiscal 2006.
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T . K .  M A X X :

Fiscal Year Ended January

U.S. Dollars In Millions 2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales $1,304.4 $992.2 $720.1

Segment profit $ 70.7 $ 59.1 $ 43.0

Segment profit as % of net sales 5.4% 6.0% 6.0%

Percent increase in same store sales

U.S. currency 14% 16% 11%

Local currency 3% 6% 5%

Stores in operation at end of period 170 147 123

Selling square footage at end of period (in thousands) 3,491 2,841 2,282

T.K. Maxx, operating in the United Kingdom and Ireland had a same store sales increase of 3% (in local currency) in fiscal

2005 on top of a 6% increase in fiscal 2004. T.K. Maxx’s same store sales in fiscal 2005 were adversely affected by unseasonable

weather patterns in the first half of the year and a highly promotional retail environment in the latter half of the year. In light of the

retail environment under which T.K. Maxx operated in fiscal 2005, this division was effective in managing inventories and expenses

to minimize the impact on segment profit margins. Segment profit and segment profit as a percentage of net sales for fiscal 2005

include a $6.5 million charge for T.K. Maxx’s share of the cumulative impact of the lease accounting adjustment. The significant

growth in T.K. Maxx’s segment profit in fiscal 2005 is attributable to the increase in sales as well as the favorable benefit of foreign

currency exchange rates. The segment profit margin in fiscal 2005 decreased .6% to 5.4%, primarily due to an increase in occupancy

costs of .7% as a percentage of sales, of which .5% was attributable to the cumulative lease accounting charge.

Segment profit for fiscal 2004 increased 37% over the segment profit for fiscal 2003 with approximately one-quarter of this

growth coming from currency exchange rates. The strong segment performance in fiscal 2004 was driven by T.K. Maxx’s strong

execution of its merchandising and inventory strategies.

We added 23 new T.K. Maxx stores in fiscal 2005, and increased the division’s selling square footage by 23%. Selling square

footage was favorably impacted by the addition of mezzanines in some of our existing stores. We plan to open an additional 23 T.K.

Maxx stores in fiscal 2006, and expand selling square footage by 20%.

H O M E G O O D S :

Fiscal Year Ended January

Dollars In Millions 2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales $1,012.9 $876.5 $705.1

Segment profit $ 23.1 $ 49.8 $ 32.1

Segment profit as % of net sales 2.3% 5.7% 4.6%

Percent increase in same store sales 1% 1% 6%

Stores in operation at end of period 216 182 142

Selling square footage at end of period (in thousands) 4,159 3,548 2,830

HomeGoods’ same store sales grew 1% in fiscal 2005, compared to a 1% increase in fiscal 2004. Segment profit and segment

profit as a percentage of net sales include a $2.2 million charge for HomeGoods’ share of the cumulative impact of the lease accounting

adjustment. HomeGoods’ segment profit declined from $49.8 million in fiscal 2004 to $23.1 million in fiscal 2005. The business was

adversely affected by weaker retail demand for home fashion product as well as an unfavorable merchandise mix, which led to a modest

1% same store sales increase. Consequently, the division took additional markdowns, which contributed to a 1.8% reduction in its

merchandise margin. The decline in segment profit margin from 5.7% in fiscal 2004 to 2.3% in fiscal 2005 is primarily due to this

reduction in merchandise margin. Segment profit margin was also impacted by a .9% increase in occupancy costs as a percentage of net

sales (including .2% due to the lease accounting charge) and a .7% increase in distribution center costs as a percentage of net sales. These

expense ratio increases reflect the negative impact on expense ratios of a 1% same store sales increase.
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In fiscal 2004, segment profit increased 55% over the segment profit of fiscal 2003 despite only a modest 1% increase in same

store sales in fiscal 2004. HomeGoods’ segment profit margin reflected the solid execution of its merchandising and inventory

strategies in fiscal 2004, and a reduction in distribution and administrative expenses as the business expanded over fiscal 2003.

We opened a net of 34 HomeGoods stores in fiscal 2005, a 19% increase, and increased selling square footage of the division

by 17%. In fiscal 2006, we plan to add a net of 40 new HomeGoods stores (including freestanding and superstore formats) and

increase selling square footage by 19%.

A . J .  W R I G H T :

Fiscal Year Ended January

Dollars In Millions 2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

Net sales $530.6 $421.6 $277.2

Segment (loss) profit $ (15.0) $ 1.7 $ (12.6)

Segment (loss) profit as % of net sales (2.8)% .4% (4.5)%

Percent increase in same store sales 4% 8% 11%

Stores in operation at end of period 130 99 75

Selling square footage at end of period (in thousands) 2,606 1,967 1,498

A.J. Wright’s same store sales increased 4% for fiscal 2005 compared to an 8% increase in same store sales for fiscal 2004.

Segment profit and segment profit as a percentage of net sales include a $1.7 million charge for A.J. Wright’s share of the cumulative

impact of the lease accounting adjustment. We believe that the A.J. Wright customer is more sensitive to economic factors, such as

higher energy costs, and that this had an impact on the division’s sales performance in fiscal 2005. We also believe that a weaker

demand in urban fashion trends impacted sales during the year. These sales trends caused us to take higher markdowns to clear

inventories and to reposition our merchandise mix. Segment profit margin for fiscal 2005 reflects a reduction in merchandise margins

of 1.2%, primarily due to this higher markdown activity. We believe that the pace of store openings in fiscal 2005, especially later in

the year, may have been too aggressive for this young division, and placed a strain on operations. In addition, the lower-than-planned

sales volume for fiscal 2005 negatively impacted expense ratios for occupancy costs, distribution center costs and store payroll.

Distribution center costs were also impacted by expense increases relating to A.J. Wright’s new distribution facility in Indiana.

In fiscal 2004, the improvement in A.J. Wright’s segment profit, as compared to fiscal 2003, was primarily due to the impact

of improved merchandising and strong inventory management, which led to improved merchandise margins. Segment profit for

fiscal 2004 also included a $1.7 million gain in connection with an agreement to vacate a store property.

We added 31 new A.J. Wright stores in fiscal 2005, increasing selling square footage by 32%. In fiscal 2006, we plan to add 25

new stores and increase selling square footage by 20%.

B O B ’ S  S T O R E S :

Fiscal 2005 was the first full fiscal year for Bob’s Stores as a TJX division. Bob’s Stores now operates 32 stores and recorded

fiscal 2005 sales of $290.6 million and a segment loss of $17.3 million. In fiscal 2005, we built the Bob’s Stores organization and we

continued to refine the concept, including repositioning the division’s promotional activity, improving its inventory management,

fine tuning its product assortment and testing a smaller store size. For fiscal 2006, we plan to open 5 Bob’s Stores and increase selling

square footage by 15%.

G E N E R A L  C O R P O R A T E  E X P E N S E :

Fiscal Year Ended January

Dollars In Millions 2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

General corporate expense $88.5 $78.4 $72.8

General corporate expense for segment reporting purposes are those costs not specifically related to the operations of our

business segments. This item includes the costs of the corporate office, including the compensation and benefits for senior corporate
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management; payroll and operating costs of the non-divisional departments for accounting and budgeting, internal audit, treasury,

investor relations, tax, risk management, legal, human resources and systems; and the occupancy and office maintenance costs

associated with the corporate staff. In addition, general corporate expense includes the cost of benefits for existing retirees and non-

operating costs and other gains and losses not attributable to individual divisions. General corporate expense is included in selling,

general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

The increase in general corporate expense in fiscal 2005 over the prior year reflects the change in net foreign exchange gains

and losses, the majority of which relates to derivative contracts that hedge foreign currency exposures on intercompany activity. In

addition, general corporate expense for fiscal 2005 reflects an increase in general corporate overhead, incremental audit fees and costs

related to the start-up of our e-commerce businesses. This increase was offset in part by a $6.3 million reduction in contributions to

The TJX Foundation in fiscal 2005, compared to fiscal 2004.

The increase in general corporate expense from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 was primarily the result of contributions to The TJX

Foundation of $9.8 million in fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2003, there were no contributions to The TJX Foundation. This increase in

general corporate expense was partially offset by the change in net foreign exchange gains and losses and related hedging activity.

The majority of this item relates to derivative contracts that provide an economic hedge of foreign currency exposures on divisional

inventory commitments and intercompany activity. The changes in the fair value of the contracts are reflected currently in earnings.

In fiscal 2003 and for the first nine months of fiscal 2004, the realized gains or losses on these contracts were allocated to the

appropriate division at the time the contracts were settled. Effective with the fourth quarter ended January 31, 2004 we began

including the unrealized values of these contracts within the individual segments.

L I Q U I D I T Y  A N D  C A P I T A L  R E S O U R C E S

Operating activities:

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1,079.8 million in fiscal 2005, $770.5 million in fiscal 2004, and $908.6 million

in fiscal 2003. The cash generated from operating activities each of these fiscal years is largely due to strong operating earnings. The

difference in net cash provided from operating activities from year to year is largely driven by the change in inventory, net of

accounts payable, from prior year-end levels. In fiscal 2005 this change in net inventory position resulted in a use of cash of $85.3

million compared to $191.8 million in fiscal 2004 and $40.1 million in fiscal 2003. Average per store inventories, including inventory

on hand at our distribution centers, at January 29, 2005 increased only 1% compared to the prior year, whereas inventories per store

at January 31, 2004 were up 11% compared to the prior year. This change in net inventory position and the trend in inventory levels

per store reflect our decision to raise the level of store inventories in fiscal 2004 over fiscal 2003 levels and to maintain them at fiscal

2004 levels in fiscal 2005. Effective with the third quarter ended October 30, 2004, we began to accrue for inventory obligations at

the time inventory is shipped rather than when received and accepted by TJX. This accrual as of January 29, 2005 increased both

inventory and accounts payable by $237 million and thus had no impact on cash flow from operations.

The cash flows from operating activities for fiscal 2005 were also impacted by a larger increase in accrued expenses and other

liabilities than in fiscal 2004, reflecting increased accruals at the end of fiscal 2005 for rent and landlord allowances, property

additions, gift cards and payroll. The cash flows from operating activities for fiscal 2004 were impacted by a smaller increase in

accrued expenses and other liabilities at the end of fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003, reflecting reduced accruals for property

additions and the payment of the California lawsuits in fiscal 2004. The change in accrued expenses and other liabilities also reflects

cash expenditures of $7.1 million in fiscal 2005, $37.2 million in fiscal 2004, and $32.2 million in fiscal 2003 charged against our

discontinued operations reserve as discussed in more detail below.

Operating cash flows in fiscal 2005, and to a greater extent in fiscal 2004, were favorably affected by deferred tax benefits

related to payments against the discontinued operations reserve and increased accelerated depreciation on certain assets allowed for

U.S. income tax purposes. Cash flows from operating activities were reduced by contributions to our qualified pension fund of $25.0

million in fiscal 2005, $17.5 million in fiscal 2004 and $58.0 million in fiscal 2003. All of the contributions to the pension fund in

fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 were made on a voluntary basis.

Discontinued operations reserve: We have a reserve for potential future obligations of discontinued operations that relates

primarily to real estate leases of former TJX businesses that have been sold or spun off. The reserve reflects TJX’s estimation of its
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cost for claims that have been, or are likely to be, made against TJX for liability as an original lessee or guarantor of the leases when

the assignees of the leases filed for bankruptcy, after mitigation of the number and cost of lease obligations.

At January 29, 2005, substantially all leases of discontinued operations that were rejected in the bankruptcies and for which the

landlords asserted liability against TJX had been resolved. It is possible that there will be future costs for leases from these discontinued

operations that were not terminated or have not expired. We do not expect to incur any material costs related to our discontinued

operations in excess of our reserve. The reserve balance amounted to $12.4 million as of January 29, 2005 and $17.5 million as of

January 31, 2004.

We may also be contingently liable on up to 20 leases of BJ’s Wholesale Club, another former TJX business, for which BJ’s Wholesale

Club is primarily liable. Our reserve for discontinued operations does not reflect these leases, because we believe that the likelihood of any

future liability to TJX with respect to these leases is remote due to the current financial condition of BJ’s Wholesale Club.

Off-balance sheet liabilities: We have contingent obligations on leases, for which we were a lessee or guarantor, which were

assigned to third parties without TJX being released by the landlords. Over many years, we have assigned numerous leases that we

originally leased or guaranteed to a significant number of third parties. With the exception of leases of our discontinued operations

discussed above, we have rarely had a claim with respect to assigned leases, and accordingly, we do not expect that such leases will

have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We do not generally have sufficient

information about these leases to estimate our potential contingent obligations under them.

We also have contingent obligations in connection with some assigned or sublet properties that we are able to estimate. We

estimate the undiscounted obligations, not reflected in our reserves, of leases of closed stores of continuing operations, BJ’s

Wholesale Club leases discussed in Note K to the consolidated financial statements, and properties of our discontinued operations

that we have sublet, if the subtenants did not fulfill their obligations, is approximately $120 million as of January 29, 2005. We believe

that most or all of these contingent obligations will not revert to TJX and, to the extent they do, will be resolved for substantially less

due to mitigating factors.

We are a party to various agreements under which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party with respect to breach of

warranty or losses related to such matters as title to assets sold, specified environmental matters or certain income taxes. These

obligations are typically limited in time and amount. There are no amounts reflected in our balance sheets with respect to these

contingent obligations.

Investing activities:

Our cash flows for investing activities include capital expenditures for the last two years as set forth in the table below:

Fiscal Year Ended January

In Millions 2005 2004

New stores $162.6 $164.7

Store renovations and improvements 193.7 147.3

Office and distribution centers 72.8 97.0

Capital expenditures $429.1 $409.0

We expect that capital expenditures will approximate $530 million for fiscal 2006. This includes $168 million for new stores,

$262 million for store renovations, expansions and improvements and $100 million for our office and distribution centers. Our

planned rate of growth in selling square footage per year is approximately 8%, on a consolidated basis, for the next several years. Our

rate of store growth and the planned expansion and renovation of existing stores, are the major factors in our increase in planned

capital expenditures.

Investing activities for fiscal 2004 includes a net cash outflow of $57.1 million to acquire Bob’s Stores as discussed in Note B to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Financing activities:

Cash flows from financing activities resulted in net cash outflows of $587.6 million in fiscal 2005, $546.8 million in fiscal 2004,

and $509.1 million in fiscal 2003. The majority of this outflow relates to our share repurchase program.

We spent $594.6 million in fiscal 2005, $520.7 million in fiscal 2004, and $481.7 million in fiscal 2003 under our stock

repurchase programs. We repurchased 25.1 million shares in fiscal 2005, 26.8 million shares in fiscal 2004, and 25.9 million shares in

fiscal 2003. All shares repurchased were retired with the exception of 75,000 shares purchased in fiscal 2004 and 87,638 shares

purchased in fiscal 2003, which are held in treasury. During May 2004, we completed a $1 billion stock repurchase program and

announced our intention to repurchase an additional $1 billion of common stock. Since the inception of the new $1 billion stock

repurchase program, as of January 29, 2005, we have repurchased 17.7 million shares at a total cost of $406.6 million under this

program. All of these repurchased share numbers reflect the two-for-one stock split distributed in May 2002.

Financing activities also included scheduled principal payments on long-term debt of $5 million in fiscal 2005, and

$15 million in fiscal 2004.

We declared quarterly dividends on our common stock which totaled $.18 per share in fiscal 2005, $.14 per share in fiscal

2004, and $.12 per share in fiscal 2003. Cash payments for dividends on our common stock totaled $83.4 million in fiscal 2005,

$68.9 million in fiscal 2004, and $60.0 million in fiscal 2003. Financing activities also include proceeds of $96.9 million in fiscal

2005, $59.2 million in fiscal 2004, and $33.9 million in fiscal 2003 from the exercise of employee stock options. These stock option

exercises, along with vesting of restricted stock awards, also provided tax benefits of $20.9 million in fiscal 2005, $13.6 million in

fiscal 2004, and $11.8 million in fiscal 2003. These tax benefits are included in cash provided by operating activities.

We traditionally have funded our seasonal merchandise requirements through cash generated from operations, short-term bank

borrowings and the issuance of short-term commercial paper. During fiscal 2003, we entered into a $370 million five-year revolving

credit facility and in fiscal 2005 we renewed our 364-day revolving credit facility for $330 million. Effective March 17, 2005, we

extended the 364-day agreement until July 15, 2005, with substantially all of the terms and conditions of the original facility

remaining unchanged. We anticipate that during the year we will negotiate new agreements increasing the aggregate size of our

revolving credit facilities and extending their maturity. The credit facilities do not require any compensating balances, however, TJX

must maintain certain leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. Based on our current financial condition, we believe that non-

compliance with these covenants is remote. The revolving credit facilities are used as backup to our commercial paper program. As

of January 29, 2005 there were no outstanding amounts under our credit facilities. The maximum amount of our U.S. short-term

borrowings outstanding was $5 million during fiscal 2005 and $27 million during fiscal 2004. There were no short-term borrowings

during fiscal 2003. The weighted average interest rate on our U.S. short-term borrowings was 2.04% in fiscal 2005 and 1.09% in

fiscal 2004. As of January 29, 2005, we had credit lines totaling C$20 million for our Canadian subsidiary. The maximum amount

outstanding under our Canadian credit line was C$6.8 million during fiscal 2005, C$5.6 million in fiscal 2004, and C$19.2 million

in fiscal 2003. The funding requirements of our Canadian operations were largely provided by TJX.

We believe that our current credit facilities are more than adequate to meet our operating needs. See Note C to the

consolidated financial statements for further information regarding our long-term debt and available financing sources.
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Contractual obligations: As of January 29, 2005, we had payment obligations (including current installments) under long-term

debt arrangements, leases for property and equipment and purchase obligations that will require cash outflows as follows (in

thousands):

Payments Due by Year

Less More

Than 1 1-3 3-5 Than 5

Long-Term Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years

Long-term debt obligations $ 675,439 $ 99,995 $ 375,755 $ 199,689 $ -

Operating lease commitments 4,840,640 707,676 1,310,903 1,112,675 1,709,386

Capital lease obligations 41,575 3,726 7,452 7,452 22,945

Purchase obligations 1,617,142 1,589,953 26,741 448 -

$7,174,796 $2,401,350 $1,720,851 $1,320,264 $1,732,331

The above maturity table assumes that all holders of the zero coupon convertible subordinated notes exercise their put options

in fiscal 2008. The note holders also have put options available to them in fiscal 2014. If none of the put options are exercised and

the notes are not redeemed or converted, the notes will mature in fiscal 2022.

The lease commitments in the above table are for minimum rent and do not include costs for insurance, real estate taxes and

common area maintenance costs that we are obligated to pay. These costs were approximately one-third of the total minimum rent

for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005.

Our purchase obligations consist of purchase orders for merchandise; purchase orders for capital expenditures, supplies and

other operating needs; commitments under contracts for maintenance needs and other services; and commitments under a limited

number of executive employment agreements. We excluded long-term agreements for services and operating needs that can be

cancelled without penalty.

We also have long-term liabilities that do not have specified maturity dates. Included in other long-term liabilities is

$125.7 million for employee compensation and benefits, most of which will come due beyond five years and $115.3 million for

accrued rent, the cash flow requirements of which are included in the lease commitments in the above table.

C R I T I C A L  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

TJX must evaluate and select applicable accounting policies. We consider our most critical accounting policies, involving

management estimates and judgments, to be those relating to inventory valuation, retirement obligations, casualty insurance, and

accounting for taxes. We believe that we have selected the most appropriate assumptions in each of the following areas and that the results

we would have obtained, had alternative assumptions been selected, would not be materially different from the results we have reported.

Inventory valuation: We use the retail method for valuing inventory on a first-in first-out basis. Under the retail method, the

cost value of inventory and gross margins are determined by calculating a cost-to-retail ratio and applying it to the retail value of

inventory. This method is widely used in the retail industry and involves management estimates with regard to such things as

markdowns and inventory shrinkage. A significant factor involves the recording and timing of permanent markdowns. Under the

retail method, permanent markdowns are reflected in the inventory valuation when the price of an item is changed. We believe the

retail method results in a more conservative inventory valuation than other accounting methods. In addition, as a normal business

practice, we have a very specific policy as to when markdowns are to be taken, greatly reducing the need for management estimates.

Inventory shortage involves estimating a shrinkage rate for interim periods, but is based on a full physical inventory at fiscal year end.

Thus, the difference between actual and estimated amounts may cause fluctuations in quarterly results, but is not a factor in full year

results. Overall, we believe that the retail method, coupled with our disciplined permanent markdown policy and a full physical

inventory taken at each fiscal year end, results in an inventory valuation that is fairly stated. Lastly, many retailers have arrangements

with vendors that provide for rebates and allowances under certain conditions, which ultimately affect the value of the inventory.

Our off-price businesses have historically not entered into such arrangements with our vendors. Bob’s Stores, the value-oriented

retailer we acquired in December 2003, does have vendor relationships that provide for recovery of advertising dollars if certain
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conditions are met. These arrangements do have some impact on Bob’s inventory valuation but such amounts are immaterial to our

consolidated results.

Retirement obligations: Retirement costs are accrued over the service life of an employee and represent in the aggregate

obligations that will ultimately be settled far in the future and are therefore subject to estimates. We are required to make assumptions

regarding variables, such as the discount rate for valuing pension obligations and the long-term rate of return assumed to be earned

on pension assets, both of which impact the net periodic pension cost for the period. The discount rate, which we determine

annually based on market interest rates, has dropped over the past several years and our actual returns on pension assets for the several

years prior to fiscal 2004 were considerably less than our expected returns. These two factors can have a considerable impact on the

annual cost of retirement benefits and in recent years have had an unfavorable effect on the funded status of our qualified pension

plan. We have made contributions of $100.5 million, which exceeded the minimum required, over the last three years to largely

restore the funded status of our plan.

Casualty insurance: The nature of our casualty insurance program for certain fiscal periods, primarily fiscal 2005, 2004 and

2003, carries a deductible that exposes TJX to losses for casualty claims in excess of our estimated annual cost of such losses. The

accrual for our estimated losses requires us, with the aid of an actuarial service and based upon claims experience of TJX and other

factors, to make significant estimates and assumptions. Actual results could differ from these estimates. A large portion of these losses

are funded during the policy year, offsetting our estimated loss accruals. The Company has a net accrual of $26.4 million for the

unfunded portion of its casualty losses as of January 29, 2005.

Accounting for taxes: Like many large corporations, we are regularly under audit by the United States federal, state, local or

foreign tax authorities in the areas of income taxes and the remittance of sales and use taxes. In evaluating the potential exposure

associated with the various tax filing positions, we accrue charges for possible exposures. Based on the annual evaluations of tax

positions, we believe we have appropriately filed our tax returns and accrued for possible exposures. To the extent we were to prevail

in matters for which accruals have been established or be required to pay amounts in excess of reserves, our effective tax rate in a

given financial period might be materially impacted. The Internal Revenue Service is currently examining the fiscal years ended

January 2000 through January 2003 and we also have various state and foreign tax examinations in process.

R E C E N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P R O N O U N C E M E N T S

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

(‘‘SFAS’’) No. 123R, ‘‘Share-Based Payment’’ (SFAS No. 123R) which requires that the cost of all employee stock options, as well

as other equity-based compensation arrangements, be reflected in the financial statements based on the estimated fair value of the

awards on the grant date (with limited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is

required to provide service in exchange for the award or the requisite service period (usually the vesting period). This Statement is

effective for public entities as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005 (our

third quarter of fiscal 2006). We disclose the pro forma impact of expensing stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123 as

originally issued in our notes to the consolidated financial statements and we are still assessing the impact that SFAS No. 123R will

have on our financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, ‘‘Inventory Costs,’’ which clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts

of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) by requiring these items to be recognized as current-

period charges. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005, with earlier

application permitted. We do not believe the adoption of this Statement will have a material impact on our financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, ‘‘Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets,’’ an amendment of APB Opinion

No. 29. This Statement addresses the measurement of exchanges of nonmonetary assets. It eliminates the exception from fair value

measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets in paragraph 21(b) of APB 29 and replaces it with an exception for

exchanges that do not have commercial substance. This Statement is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods

beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not believe the adoption of this Statement will have any material impact on our financial statements.

On January 12, 2004, the FASB released Staff Position No. SFAS 106-1, ‘‘Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related

to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003’’ which addresses the accounting and disclosure
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implications that are expected to arise as a result of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003

(the ‘‘Act’’) enacted on December 8, 2003. We are in the process of determining if our plan is actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part

D and our disclosed postretirement medical cost of $6.7 million for fiscal 2005 has not been reduced by any federal subsidy. We do

not expect that any subsidy for which we may qualify will be material.

M A R K E T  R I S K

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk on our investment in our Canadian (Winners and HomeSense) and

European (T.K. Maxx) operations. As more fully described in Notes A and D to the consolidated financial statements, we hedge a

significant portion of our net investment in foreign operations; intercompany transactions with these operations; and certain

merchandise purchase commitments incurred by these operations; with derivative financial instruments. We utilize currency forward

and swap contracts, designed to offset the gains or losses in the underlying exposures. The contracts are executed with banks we

believe are creditworthy and are denominated in currencies of major industrial countries. We do not enter into derivatives for

speculative trading purposes.

In addition, the assets of our qualified pension plan, a large portion of which is invested in equity securities, are subject to the

risks and uncertainties of the public stock market. We allocate the pension assets in a manner that attempts to minimize and control

our exposure to these market uncertainties.

I T E M  7 A . Q U A N T I T A T I V E  A N D  Q U A L I T A T I V E  D I S C L O S U R E  A B O U T  M A R K E T  R I S K

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk on our investment in our Canadian (Winners and HomeSense) and

European (T.K. Maxx) operations. As more fully described in Notes A and D to the consolidated financial statements, we hedge a

significant portion of our net investment in foreign operations; intercompany transactions with these operations; and certain

merchandise purchase commitments incurred by these operations; with derivative financial instruments. We enter into derivative

contracts only when there is an underlying economic exposure. We utilize currency forward and swap contracts, designed to offset

the gains or losses in the underlying exposures. The contracts are executed with banks we believe are creditworthy and are

denominated in currencies of major industrial countries. We have performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10%

adverse movement in foreign currency exchange rates applied to the hedging contracts and the underlying exposures described

above. As of January 29, 2005, the analysis indicated that such an adverse movement would not have a material effect on our

consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our cash equivalents and short-term investments and certain lines of credit bear variable interest rates. Changes in interest rates

affect interest earned and paid by the Company. We occasionally enter into financial instruments to manage our cost of borrowing;

however, we believe that the use of primarily fixed rate debt minimizes our exposure to market conditions.

We have performed a sensitivity analysis assuming a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rates applied to the

maximum variable rate debt outstanding during the previous year. As of January 29, 2005, the analysis indicated that such an adverse

movement would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

I T E M  8 . F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  A N D  S U P P L E M E N T A RY  D A T A

The information required by this item may be found on pages F-1 through F-30 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

I T E M  9 . D I S A G R E E M E N T S  O N  A C C O U N T I N G  A N D  F I N A N C I A L  D I S C L O S U R E

Not applicable.

I T E M  9 A . C O N T R O L S  A N D  P R O C E D U R E S

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company carried out an evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report, under the supervision and with the

participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the

effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and 15d-14
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of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that all information required to be

filed in this annual report was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period required by the rules and

regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

There have been no changes in internal controls over financial reporting, that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of TJX is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.

Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f ) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as

amended, as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and

effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as

of January 29, 2005 based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (‘‘COSO’’). Based on that evaluation, management concluded that its internal control

over financial reporting was effective as of January 29, 2005.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, who audited and reported on the consoli-

dated financial statements of The TJX Companies, Inc., has audited management’s assessment of our internal control over financial

reporting as of January 29, 2005, as stated in their report which is included herein.

(c) Attestation report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005

has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which

appears herein.

I T E M  9 B . O T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N

None.
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Part III

I T E M  1 0 . D I R E C T O R S  A N D  E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R S  O F  T H E  R E G I S T R A N T

TJX will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement no later than 120 days after the close

of its fiscal year ended January 29, 2005. The information required by this Item and not given in Item 4A, under the caption

‘‘Executive Officers of the Registrant,’’ will appear under the headings ‘‘Election of Directors’’ ‘‘Corporate Governance,’’ ‘‘Audit

Committee Report’’ and ‘‘Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance’’ in our Proxy Statement, which sections are

incorporated in this item by reference.

I T E M  1 1 . E X E C U T I V E  C O M P E N S A T I O N

The information required by this Item will appear under the heading ‘‘Executive Compensation’’ in our Proxy Statement,

which section is incorporated in this item by reference.

I T E M  1 2 . S E C U R I T Y  O W N E R S H I P  O F  C E R T A I N  B E N E F I C I A L  O W N E R S  A N D  M A N A G E M E N T

The information required by this Item will appear under the heading ‘‘Beneficial Ownership’’ in our Proxy Statement, which

section is incorporated in this item by reference.

The following table provides certain information as of January 29, 2005 with respect to our equity compensation plans:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(c)
Number of securities

remaining available
(a) (b) for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted-average exercise under equity
be issued upon exercise price of outstanding compensation plans
of outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securities

Plan Category warrants and rights and rights reflected in (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 48,557,665 $18.44 33,215,903

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders (1) N/A N/A N/A

Total 48,557,665 $18.44 33,215,903

(1) All equity compensation plans have been approved by shareholders.

For additional information concerning our equity compensation plans, see Note F to our consolidated financial statements, on page F-16.

I T E M  1 3 . C E R T A I N  R E L A T I O N S H I P S  A N D  R E L A T E D  T R A N S A C T I O N S

The information required by this Item will appear under the heading ‘‘Retirement Plans’’ in our Proxy Statement, which

section is incorporated in this item by reference.

I T E M  1 4 . P R I N C I P A L  A C C O U N T A N T  F E E S  A N D  S E RV I C E S

The information required by this Item will appear under the heading ‘‘Audit Committee Report’’ in our Proxy Statement,

which section is incorporated in this item by reference.

28



Part IV

I T E M  1 5 . E X H I B I T S  A N D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T  S C H E D U L E S

(a) Financial Statement Schedules

For a list of the consolidated financial information included herein, see Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements on

page F-1.

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance Amounts Write-Offs Balance

Beginning of Charged to Against End of

(In Thousands) Period Net Income Reserve Period

Sales Return Reserve:

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005 $11,596 $825,795 $824,229 $13,162

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 $10,201 $772,199 $770,804 $11,596

Fiscal Year Ended January 25, 2003 $ 9,135 $701,720 $700,654 $10,201

Discontinued Operations Reserve:

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005 $17,518 $ - $ 5,153 $12,365

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 $55,361 $ - $ 37,843 $17,518

Fiscal Year Ended January 25, 2003 $87,284 $ - $ 31,923 $55,361

Casualty Insurance Reserve:

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005 $15,877 $ 58,045 $ 47,488 $26,434

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 $ 9,465 $ 44,531 $ 38,119 $15,877

Fiscal Year Ended January 25, 2003 $12,545 $ 25,186 $ 28,266 $ 9,465

(b) Exhibits

Listed below are all exhibits filed as part of this report. Some exhibits are filed by the Registrant with the Securities and

Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 12b-32 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

3(i).1 Fourth Restated Certificate of Incorporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the

Form 8-A/A filed September 9, 1999.

3(ii).1 The by-laws of TJX, as amended, are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Form 8-A/A filed

September 9, 1999.

4.1 Indenture between TJX and The Bank of New York dated as of February 13, 2001, incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 of the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on May 9, 2001.

Each other instrument relates to long-term debt securities the total amount of which does not exceed 10% of the

total assets of TJX and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.  TJX agrees to furnish to the Securities and

Exchange Commission copies of each such instrument not otherwise filed herewith or incorporated herein by

reference.
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

10.1 Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of March 26, 2002 among the financial institutions as lenders,

Bank One, NA, Fleet National Bank, The Bank of New York, Bank of America, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank,

as  co-agents, and TJX is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to  the Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended January 26, 2002.  Amendment No. 1  to the Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3,

2002 is  incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed  for the quarter ended April 27,

2002.  Amendment No. 2 to the Five-Year  Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2002 is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter  ended July 27, 2002.

10.2 364-day Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of March 26, 2002 among the  financial institutions as lenders, Bank

One, NA, Fleet National Bank, The  Bank of New York, Bank of America, N.A. and JP Morgan Chase Bank, as

co-agents, and TJX is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to  the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

January 26, 2002.  Amendment No. 1  to the 364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2002 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed  for the quarter ended April 27, 2002.

Amendment No. 2 to the 364-Day  Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2002 is incorporated  herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter  ended July 27, 2002.  Amendment No. 3 to

the 364-Day Revolving Credit  Agreement dated as of March 24, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference  to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January  25, 2003.  Amendment No. 4 to the

364-Day Revolving Credit Agreement dated  March 17, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the  Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004. Amendment No. 5 to  the 364-day Revolving

Credit Agreement dated as of March 10, 2005 is  incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed

on March  15, 2005.

10.3 The Employment Agreement dated as of June 3, 2003 between Edmond J. English and the Company is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended July 26, 2003.*

10.4 The Employment Agreement dated as of June 3, 2003 between Bernard  Cammarata and the Company is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit  10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended July 26, 2003.*

10.5 The Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 28, 2001 with Donald G. Campbell is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended April 28, 2001.*

10.6 The Agreement dated as of November 8, 2004 between Carol Meyrowitz and The TJX Companies, Inc. is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2004.*

10.7 The Employment Agreement dated as of January 31, 2000 with Arnold Barron is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended October 28, 2000.  The amendment to the

Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2001 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 26, 2002.*

10.8 The TJX Companies, Inc. Management Incentive Plan, as amended, is  incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed  for the quarter ended July 26, 1997.*

10.9 The 1982 Long Range Management Incentive Plan, as amended, is  incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10(h) to the Form 10-K filed  for the fiscal year ended January 29, 1994.*

10.10 The Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated through June 1, 2004,  is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed  for the quarter ended July 31, 2004.*

10.11 The Form of a Non-Qualified Stock Option Certificate Granted Under the  Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2  to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended July 31, 2004.*

10.12 The Form of a Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Granted Under  Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3  to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter ended July 31, 2004.*

10.13 Description of Director Compensation Arrangements is filed herewith.*

10.14 The TJX Companies, Inc. Long Range Performance Incentive Plan, as  amended, is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form  10-Q filed for the quarter ended July 26, 1997.*

10.15 The General Deferred Compensation Plan (1998 Restatement) and related  First Amendment, effective January 1,

1999, are incorporated herein by  reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended  January 30,

1999.  The related Second Amendment, effective January 1,  2000, is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.10 to the Form  10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2000.*
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

10.16 The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(l) to

the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 25, 1992.*

10.17 The Executive Savings Plan and related Amendments No. 1 and No. 2, effective as of October 1, 1998, is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 30,

1999.*

10.18 The Agreement and the Form of the related Split Dollar Agreements dated October 28, 1999 between TJX and

Bernard Cammarata are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed for the quarter

ended October 31, 1999.*

10.19 The Restoration Agreement and related letter agreement regarding conditional reimbursement dated December 31,

2002 between TJX and Bernard Cammarata are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Form 10-

K filed for the fiscal year ended January 25, 2003. *

10.20 The Agreement and the Form of the related Split Dollar Agreements dated February 29, 2000 between TJX and

Richard Lesser are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year

ended January 29, 2000.*

10.21 The Restoration Agreement dated January 20, 2003 between TJX and Richard Lesser is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 25, 2003. *

10.22 The Modification Agreement dated January 20, 2003 among TJX, Boston Private Bank and Trust Company,

Trustee, and Richard G. Lesser is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended January 25, 2003.*

10.23 The form of Indemnification Agreement between TJX and each of its officers and directors is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10(r) to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 27, 1990.*

10.24 The Trust Agreement dated as of April 8, 1988 between TJX and State Street Bank and Trust Company is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(y) to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 30,

1988.*

10.25 The Trust Agreement dated as of April 8, 1988 between TJX and Fleet Bank (formerly Shawmut Bank of Boston,

N.A.) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(z) to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended

January 30, 1988. *

10.26 The Trust Agreement for Executive Savings Plan dated as of January 1, 2005 between TJX and Wells Fargo Bank,

N.A. is filed herewith.*

10.27 The Distribution Agreement dated as of May 1, 1989 between TJX and HomeBase, Inc. (formerly Waban Inc.) is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3 to TJX’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 21, 1989. The

First Amendment to Distribution Agreement dated as of April 18, 1997 between TJX and HomeBase, Inc.

(formerly Waban Inc.) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal

year ended January 25, 1997.

10.28 The Indemnification Agreement dated as of April 18, 1997 by and between TJX and BJ’s Wholesale Club, Inc. is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Form 10-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 25,

1997.

14 Code of Ethics:

TJX’s Code of Ethics for TJX Executives is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Form 10-K filed

for the fiscal year ended January 25, 2003.

21 Subsidiaries:

A list of the Registrant’s subsidiaries is filed herewith.

23 Consents of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is filed herewith.

24 Power of Attorney:

The Power of Attorney given by the Directors and certain Executive Officers of TJX is filed herewith.

31.1 Certification Statement of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section  302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is

filed herewith.
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit

31.2 Certification Statement of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section  302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is

filed herewith.

32.1 Certification Statement of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section  906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is

filed herewith.

32.2 Certification Statement of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section  906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is

filed herewith.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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S I G N A T U R E S

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE TJX COMPANIES, INC.

Dated: March 30, 2005

/s/ JEFFREY G. NAYLOR

Jeffrey G. Naylor

Senior Executive Vice President — Finance
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ EDMOND J. ENGLISH /s/ JEFFREY G. NAYLOR

Edmond J. English, President and Principal Executive Jeffrey G. Naylor, Senior Executive Vice President —

Officer and Director Finance, Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

DAVID A. BRANDON* RICHARD G. LESSER*

David A. Brandon, Director Richard G. Lesser, Director

BERNARD CAMMARATA* JOHN F. O’BRIEN*

Bernard Cammarata, Director John F. O’Brien, Director

GARY L. CRITTENDEN* ROBERT F. SHAPIRO*

Gary L. Crittenden, Director Robert F. Shapiro, Director

GAIL DEEGAN* WILLOW B. SHIRE*

Gail Deegan, Director Willow B. Shire, Director

DENNIS F. HIGHTOWER* FLETCHER H. WILEY*

Dennis F. Hightower, Director Fletcher H. Wiley, Director

*BY /s/ JEFFREY G. NAYLOR

Jeffrey G. Naylor

Dated: March 30, 2005 as attorney-in-fact
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The TJX Companies, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of The TJX Companies, Inc’s 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its internal
control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our
audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The TJX Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) at January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 29, 2005 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement
schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial

statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-

tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note A, in fiscal 2005 the Company changed its method for reporting diluted earnings per share by adopting EITF

Issue No. 04-8 ‘‘The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share.’’ All earnings per share amounts

presented have been adjusted to reflect the impact of this change.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in ‘‘Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting’’ appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of

January 29, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore,

in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 29,

2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial

reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial

reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, MA

March 30, 2005
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The TJX Companies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

Amounts In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Net sales $14,913,483 $13,327,938 $11,981,207

Cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs 11,371,747 10,077,194 9,079,579

Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,436,286 2,155,166 1,938,531

Interest expense, net 25,757 27,252 25,373

Income before provision for income taxes 1,079,693 1,068,326 937,724

Provision for income taxes 415,549 409,961 359,336

Net income $ 664,144 $ 658,365 $ 578,388

Basic earnings per share:

Net income $ 1.36 $ 1.30 $ 1.09

Weighted average common shares-basic 488,809 508,359 532,241

Diluted earnings per share -See Note A

Net income $ 1.30 $ 1.25 $ 1.05

Weighted average common shares-diluted 512,649 529,779 554,645

Cash dividends declared per share $ .18 $ .14 $ .12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The TJX Companies, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 307,187 $ 246,403

Accounts receivable, net 119,611 90,902

Merchandise inventories 2,352,032 1,941,698

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 126,290 163,766

Current deferred income taxes, net - 8,979

Total current assets 2,905,120 2,451,748

Property at cost:

Land and buildings 261,778 256,529

Leasehold costs and improvements 1,332,580 1,114,576

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,940,178 1,686,447

3,534,536 3,057,552

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,697,791 1,444,231

1,836,745 1,613,321

Property under capital lease, net of accumulated amortization of $8,190 and $5,956,

respectively 24,382 26,616

Other assets 125,463 121,255

Goodwill and tradenames, net of accumulated amortization 183,763 183,827

Total Assets $5,075,473 $4,396,767

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Current installments of long-term debt $ 99,995 $ 5,000

Obligation under capital lease due within one year 1,581 1,460

Accounts payable 1,276,035 960,382

Current deferred income taxes, net 2,354 -

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 824,147 723,678

Total current liabilities 2,204,112 1,690,520

Other long-term liabilities 466,786 337,721

Non-current deferred income taxes, net 152,553 123,817

Obligation under capital lease, less portion due within one year 25,947 27,528

Long-term debt, exclusive of current installments 572,593 664,793

Commitments and contingencies - -

Shareholders’ Equity

Common stock, authorized 1,200,000,000 shares, par value $1, issued and outstanding

480,699,154 and 499,181,639 shares, respectively 480,699 499,182

Additional paid-in capital - -

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (26,245) (13,584)

Unearned stock compensation (10,010) (12,310)

Retained earnings 1,209,038 1,079,100

Total shareholders’ equity 1,653,482 1,552,388

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $5,075,473 $4,396,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The TJX Companies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

In Thousands 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 664,144 $ 658,365 $ 578,388

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 279,059 238,385 207,876

Property disposals 4,908 5,679 8,699

Tax benefit of employee stock options 20,910 13,572 11,767

Amortization of unearned stock compensation 9,379 10,208 3,197

Deferred income tax provision 41,167 84,363 72,138

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in accounts receivable (27,731) (11,818) (5,983)

(Increase) in merchandise inventories (390,655) (310,673) (85,644)

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets 35,912 (51,413) (22,208)

Increase in accounts payable 305,344 118,832 45,559

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 154,574 20,083 133,115

Other, net (17,180) (5,083) (38,344)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,079,831 770,500 908,560

Cash flows from investing activities:

Property additions (429,133) (409,037) (396,724)

Acquisition of Bob’s Stores, net of cash acquired - (57,138) -

Proceeds from repayments on note receivable 652 606 564

Net cash (used in) investing activities (428,481) (465,569) (396,160)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt (5,002) (15,000) -

Payments on capital lease obligation (1,460) (1,348) (1,244)

Proceeds from sale and issuance of common stock 96,861 59,159 33,916

Cash payments for repurchase of common stock (594,580) (520,746) (481,734)

Cash dividends paid (83,418) (68,889) (60,025)

Net cash (used in) financing activities (587,599) (546,824) (509,087)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (2,967) (4,034) (3,759)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 60,784 (245,927) (446)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 246,403 492,330 492,776

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 307,187 $ 246,403 $ 492,330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The TJX Companies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Other Unearned

Par Paid-in Comprehensive Stock Retained
In Thousands Shares Value $1 Capital Income (Loss) Compensation Earnings Total

Balance, January 26, 2002 271,538 $271,538 $ - $ (6,755) $ (4,654) $1,080,569 $1,340,698

Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - - - 578,388 578,388

Gain due to foreign currency translation
adjustments - - - 23,006 - - 23,006

(Loss) on hedge contracts - - - (23,241) - - (23,241)

Minimum pension liability adjustment - - - 3,826 - - 3,826

Total comprehensive income 581,979

Stock split, two-for-one 269,431 269,431 - - - (269,431) -

Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - - (63,421) (63,421)

Restricted stock awards granted and fair
market value adjustments 325 325 5,870 - (6,195) - -

Amortization of unearned stock
compensation - - - - 3,197 - 3,197

Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans and related tax benefits 2,505 2,505 41,794 - - - 44,299

Common stock repurchased (23,284) (23,284) (47,664) - - (426,657) (497,605)

Balance, January 25, 2003 520,515 520,515 - (3,164) (7,652) 899,448 1,409,147

Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - - - 658,365 658,365

Gain due to foreign currency translation
adjustments - - - 14,323 - - 14,323

(Loss) on hedge contracts - - - (24,743) - - (24,743)

Total comprehensive income 647,945

Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - - (70,745) (70,745)

Restricted stock awards granted and fair
market value adjustments 600 600 14,266 - (14,866) - -

Amortization of unearned stock
compensation - - - - 10,208 - 10,208

Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans and related tax benefits 4,890 4,890 66,212 - - - 71,102

Common stock repurchased (26,823) (26,823) (80,478) - - (407,968) (515,269)

Balance, January 31, 2004 499,182 499,182 - (13,584) (12,310) 1,079,100 1,552,388

Comprehensive income:

Net income - - - - - 664,144 664,144

(Loss) due to foreign currency translation
adjustments - - - (10,681) - - (10,681)

Gain on net investment hedge contracts - - - 3,759 - - 3,759

(Loss) on cash flow hedge contract - - - (19,652) - - (19,652)

Amount of cash flow hedge reclassified
from other comprehensive income to
net income - - - 13,913 - - 13,913

Total comprehensive income 651,483

Cash dividends declared on common stock - - - - - (87,578) (87,578)

Restricted stock awards granted and fair
market value adjustments 220 220 6,859 - (7,079) - -

Amortization of unearned stock
compensation - - - - 9,379 - 9,379

Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans and related tax benefits 6,447 6,447 109,286 - - - 115,733

Common stock repurchased (25,150) (25,150) (116,145) - - (446,628) (587,923)

Balance, January 29, 2005 480,699 $480,699 $ - $(26,245) $(10,010) $1,209,038 $1,653,482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The TJX Companies, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A. Summary of Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements of The TJX Companies, Inc. (referred to as ‘‘TJX’’, the

‘‘Company’’ or ‘‘we’’) include the financial statements of all of TJX’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All of TJX’s

activities are conducted within TJX or our subsidiaries and are consolidated in these financial statements. All intercompany

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The notes pertain to continuing operations except where otherwise noted.

Fiscal Year: TJX’s fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in January. The fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 (‘‘fiscal 2004’’)

included 53 weeks. The fiscal years ended January 29, 2005 (‘‘fiscal 2005’’) and January 25, 2003 (‘‘fiscal 2003’’) each included

52 weeks.

Earnings Per Share: All earnings per share amounts discussed refer to diluted earnings per share unless otherwise indicated.

In October 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (‘‘EITF’’) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) reached a

consensus that EITF Issue No. 04-08, ‘‘The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share’’ would be

effective for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2004. This accounting pronouncement affects the company’s treatment,

for earnings per share purposes, of its $517.5 million zero coupon convertible subordinated notes issued in February 2001. The notes

are convertible into 16.9 million shares of TJX common stock if the sale price of our stock reaches certain levels or other

contingencies are met. Prior to this reporting period, the 16.9 million shares were excluded from the diluted earnings per share

calculation because criteria for conversion had not been met. EITF Issue No. 04-08 requires that shares associated with contingently

convertible debt be included in diluted earnings per share computations regardless of whether contingent conversion conditions have

been met. EITF Issue No. 04-08 also requires that diluted earnings per share for all prior periods be restated to reflect this change. As

a result, diluted earnings per share for all periods presented (including pro forma amounts) reflect the assumed conversion of our

convertible subordinated notes as well as the May 2002 two-for-one stock split.

Lease Accounting: During fiscal 2005 we recorded a one-time non-cash charge to conform our accounting policies to

generally accepted accounting principles related to the timing of rent expense for certain leased locations. Previously, we began

recording rent expense at the time a store opened and the lease term commenced as specified in the lease. Beginning in the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2005, we record rent expense when we take possession of a store, which occurs before the commencement of the

lease term, as specified in the lease, and generally 30 to 60 days prior to the opening of the store. This will result in an acceleration of

the commencement of rent expense for each lease, as we record rent expense during the pre-opening period, but a reduction in

monthly rent expense, as the total rent due under the lease is amortized over a greater number of months.

This correction resulted in a one-time, cumulative, non-cash charge of $30.7 million on a pre tax basis ($19.3 million net of

tax), or $.04 per share, which we recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.

The following is the cumulative effect of the correction by operating segment (in thousands):

Marmaxx $16,807

Winners and HomeSense 3,538

T.K. Maxx 6,473

HomeGoods 2,243

A.J. Wright 1,662

Bob’s Stores -

$30,723

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,

and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. TJX considers the more significant accounting policies that involve management estimates and
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judgments to be those relating to inventory valuation, retirement obligations, casualty insurance, and accounting for taxes. Actual

amounts could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition: TJX records revenue at the time of sale and receipt of merchandise by the customer, net of a reserve for

estimated returns. We estimate returns based upon our historical experience. We defer recognition of a layaway sale and its related

profit to the accounting period when the customer receives layaway merchandise.

Consolidated Statements of Income Classifications: Cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs include the cost of

merchandise sold and gains and losses on inventory-related derivative contracts; store occupancy costs (including real estate taxes,

utility and maintenance costs, and fixed asset depreciation); the costs of operating our distribution centers; payroll, benefits and travel

costs directly associated with buying inventory; and systems costs related to the buying and tracking of inventory.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include store payroll and benefit costs; communication costs; credit and check

expenses; advertising; administrative and field management payroll, benefits and travel costs; corporate administrative costs and

depreciation; gains and losses on non-inventory related foreign currency exchange contracts and other gains or losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: TJX generally considers highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less

to be cash equivalents. Our investments are primarily high-grade commercial paper, institutional money market funds and time

deposits with major banks. The fair value of cash equivalents approximates carrying value.

Merchandise Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. TJX uses the retail method for valuing

inventories on the first-in first-out basis. We almost exclusively utilize a permanent markdown strategy and lower the cost value of

the inventory that is subject to markdown at the time the retail prices are lowered in our stores. Effective with the third quarter

ended October 30, 2004, we have begun to accrue for inventory obligations at the time inventory is shipped rather than when

received and accepted by TJX. At January 29, 2005, the amount of in-transit inventory included in merchandise inventories and

accounts payable on the balance sheet was $236.9 million.

Common Stock and Equity: TJX’s equity transactions consist primarily of the repurchase of our common stock under our

stock repurchase program and the issuance of common stock under our stock incentive plan. Under the stock repurchase program

we repurchase our common stock on the open market. The par value of the shares repurchased is charged to common stock with the

excess of the purchase price over par first charged against any available additional paid-in capital (‘‘APIC’’) and the balance charged

to retained earnings. Due to the high volume of repurchases over the past several years we have no remaining balance in APIC.

Virtually all shares are retired when purchased. We have 250,276 shares held in treasury which are reflected as a reduction to

common stock outstanding.

Shares issued under our stock incentive plan are generally issued from authorized but previously unissued shares, and proceeds

received are recorded by increasing common stock for the par value of the shares with the excess over par added to APIC. Income

tax benefits due to the exercise of stock options are also added to APIC and included with the proceeds received from the option

exercise. The income tax benefits are included in cash flows from operating activities in the statements of cash flows. The par value

and excess of the fair value over par value of restricted stock awards are also added to common stock and APIC with an offsetting

amount recorded in unearned stock compensation. The amount included in unearned stock compensation is amortized into

earnings over the vesting period of the related award.

TJX has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (‘‘SFAS’’) No. 123, ‘‘Ac-

counting for Stock-Based Compensation,’’ and continues to apply the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,

‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,’’ in accounting for compensation expense under our stock option plan. TJX grants

options at fair market value on the date of the grant, accordingly no compensation expense has been recognized for the stock options

issued during fiscal 2005, 2004 or 2003. Compensation expense determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123, net of related

income tax effect, amounted to $60.1 million, $55.2 million and $41.7 million for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Presented below are the unaudited pro forma net income and related earnings per share showing the effect that stock

compensation expense, determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123, would have on reported results.

January 29, January 31, January 25,

In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Net income, as reported $664,144 $658,365 $578,388

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

income, net of related tax effects 5,627 6,292 1,973

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair

value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (60,072) (55,245) (41,699)

Pro forma net income $609,699 $609,412 $538,662

Earnings per share:

Basic-as reported $ 1.36 $ 1.30 $ 1.09

Basic-pro forma $ 1.25 $ 1.20 $ 1.01

Diluted-as reported $ 1.30 $ 1.25 $ 1.05

Diluted-pro forma $ 1.21 $ 1.16 $ .98

For purposes of applying the provisions of SFAS No. 123 for the pro forma calculations, the fair value of each option granted

during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following

assumptions: dividend yield of .8% in fiscal 2005, .6% in fiscal 2004 and .5% in fiscal 2003; volatility of 35%, 43% and 44% in fiscal

2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively; a risk-free interest rate of 3.4% in fiscal 2005, 3.3% in fiscal 2004 and 3.5% in fiscal 2003; and an

expected holding period of 4.5 years in fiscal 2005 and six years in fiscal 2004 and 2003. The weighted average fair value of options

granted during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $6.96, $8.75 and $8.93 per share, respectively.

Interest: TJX’s interest expense, net was $25.8 million, $27.3 million and $25.4 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003

respectively. Interest expense is presented net of interest income of $7.7 million, $6.5 million and $10.5 million in fiscal 2005, 2004

and 2003, respectively. We capitalize interest during the active construction period of major capital projects. Capitalized interest is

added to the cost of the related assets. No interest was capitalized in fiscal 2005. We capitalized interest of $1.0 million and $559,000

in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. Debt discount and related issue expenses are amortized to interest expense over the lives of the

related debt issues or to the first date the holders of the debt may require TJX to repurchase such debt.

Depreciation and Amortization: For financial reporting purposes, TJX provides for depreciation and amortization of property

by the use of the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Buildings are depreciated over 33 years. Leasehold

costs and improvements are generally amortized over their useful life or the committed lease term (typically 10 years), whichever is

shorter. Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over 3 to 10 years. Depreciation and amortization expense for property

was $268.0 million for fiscal 2005, $227.3 million for fiscal 2004, and $196.4 million for fiscal 2003. Amortization expense for

property held under a capital lease was $2.2 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as

incurred. Significant costs incurred for internally developed software are capitalized and amortized over three to ten years. Upon

retirement or sale, the cost of disposed assets and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated and any gain or loss is included

in net income. Pre-opening costs, including rent, are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: TJX periodically reviews the value of its property and intangible assets in relation to the

current and expected operating results of the related business segments in order to assess whether there has been a permanent

impairment of their carrying values. An impairment exists when the undiscounted cash flow of an asset is less than the carrying cost

of that asset. Store by store impairment analysis is performed, at a minimum on an annual basis, in the fourth quarter of a fiscal year.

Goodwill and Tradenames: Goodwill is primarily the excess of the purchase price paid over the carrying value of the minority

interest acquired in fiscal 1990 in TJX’s former 83%-owned subsidiary and represents goodwill associated with the T.J. Maxx chain

and is included in the Marmaxx segment at January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004. In addition, goodwill includes the excess of cost

over the estimated fair market value of the net assets of Winners acquired by TJX in fiscal 1991.
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Goodwill, net of amortization, totaled $71.8 million, $71.4 million and $71.5 million as of January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004

and January 25, 2003, respectively, and through January 26, 2002 was being amortized over 40 years on a straight-line basis. There

was no amortization of goodwill in fiscal 2005, 2004 or 2003. Cumulative amortization as of January 29, 2005, was $33.0 million,

and was $32.9 million at both January 31, 2004 and January 25, 2003. Changes in goodwill cost and accumulated amortization are

attributable to the effect of exchange rate changes on Winners reported goodwill.

Tradenames include the values assigned to the name ‘‘Marshalls,’’ acquired by TJX in fiscal 1996 in the acquisition of the

Marshalls chain, and to the name ‘‘Bob’s Stores’’ acquired by TJX in December 2003 when we acquired substantially all of the assets

of Bob’s Stores (see Note B). These values were determined by the discounted present value of assumed after-tax royalty payments,

offset by a reduction for their pro-rata share of negative goodwill.

The Marshalls tradename, net of accumulated amortization prior to the implementation of SFAS No. 142 in fiscal 2003, is

carried at a value of $107.7 million, is considered to have an indefinite life and accordingly, is no longer amortized. The Bob’s Stores

tradename, pursuant to the purchase accounting method, was valued at $4.8 million which is being amortized over 10 years.

Amortization expense of $483,000 and $33,000 was recognized in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively. Cumulative amortization as of

January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 was $516,000 and $33,000, respectively.

The Company occasionally acquires other trademarks in connection with private label merchandise. Such trademarks are

included in other assets and are amortized to cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs over the term of the agreement

generally from 7 to 10 years. Amortization expense related to trademarks was $492,000, $519,000, and $369,000 in fiscal 2005, 2004

and 2003, respectively. The Company had $2.7 million, $3.0 million and $3.2 million in trademarks, net of accumulated

amortization, at January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004 and January 25, 2003, respectively. Trademarks and the related amortization are

included in the related operating segment for which they were acquired.

An impairment analysis is performed for goodwill and tradenames, at a minimum on an annual basis, in the fourth quarter of a

fiscal year. No impairments have been recorded on these assets to date.

Advertising Costs: TJX expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense was $188.0 million, $148.4 million, and

$135.3 million for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation: TJX’s foreign assets and liabilities are translated at the fiscal year end exchange rate. Activity of

the foreign operations that affect the statements of income and cash flows are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing

during the fiscal year. The translation adjustments associated with the foreign operations are included in shareholders’ equity as a

component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments included in

shareholders’ equity amounted to a gain of $10.7 million, net of related tax effect of $12.2 million, as of January 29, 2005; a gain of

$21.4 million, net of related tax effect of $16.3 million, as of January 31, 2004; and a gain of $6.2 million, as of January 25, 2003.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity: TJX enters into financial instruments to manage our cost of borrowing and to

manage our exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company recognizes all derivative instruments as either

assets or liabilities in the statements of financial position and measures those instruments at fair value. Changes to the fair value of

derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting are reported in earnings in the period of the change. For derivatives that

qualify for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are either recorded in shareholders’ equity as a component

of other comprehensive income or are recognized currently in earnings, along with an offsetting adjustment against the basis of the

item being hedged. Cumulative gains and losses on derivatives that have hedged our net investment in foreign operations and

deferred gains and losses on cash flow hedges that have been recorded in other comprehensive income amounted to a loss of

$36.9 million, net of related tax effects of $24.6 million at January 29, 2005; a loss of $35.0 million, net of related tax effects of

$23.3 million as of January 31, 2004; and amounted to a loss of $9.4 million as of January 25, 2003.

New Accounting Standards: In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) issued Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards (‘‘SFAS’’) No. 123R, ‘‘Share-Based Payment’’ (SFAS No. 123R) which requires that the cost of all

employee stock options, as well as other equity-based compensation arrangements, be reflected in the financial statements based on

the estimated fair value of the awards on the grant date (with limited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period

during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award or the requisite service period (usually the
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vesting period). This Statement is effective for public entities as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that

begins after June 15, 2005 (our third quarter of fiscal 2006). We disclose the pro forma impact of expensing stock options in

accordance with SFAS No. 123, as originally issued, in our notes to the consolidated financial statements and we are still assessing the

impact that SFAS No. 123R will have on our financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, ‘‘Inventory Costs,’’ which clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts

of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) by requiring these items to be recognized as current-

period charges. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005, with earlier

application permitted. We do not believe the adoption of this Statement will have any material impact on our financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, ‘‘Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets,’’ an amendment of APB Opinion

No. 29. This Statement addresses the measurement of exchanges of nonmonetary assets. It eliminates the exception from fair value

measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets in paragraph 21(b) of APB 29 and replaces it with an exception

for exchanges that do not have commercial substance. This Statement is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal

periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not believe the adoption of this Statement will have any material impact on our

financial statements.

On January 12, 2004, the FASB released Staff Position No. SFAS 106-1, ‘‘Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related

to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003’’ which addresses the accounting and disclosure

implications that are expected to arise as a result of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003

(the ‘‘Act’’) enacted on December 8, 2003. We are in the process of determining if our plan is actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part

D and our disclosed postretirement medical cost of $6.7 million for fiscal 2005 has not been reduced by any federal subsidy. We do

not expect that any subsidy for which we may qualify will be material.

B. Acquisition of Bob’s Stores

On December 24, 2003, TJX completed the acquisition of Bob’s Stores, a value-oriented retail chain in the Northeast United

States. Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, TJX purchased substantially all of the assets of Bob’s Stores, including one owned

location, and assumed leases for 30 of Bob’s Stores locations, its Meriden, Connecticut office and warehouse lease, along with

specified operating contracts and customer, vendor and employee obligations. The purchase price, which is net of proceeds received

from a third party, amounted to $57.6 million.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, ‘‘Business

Combinations.’’ Accordingly, the purchase price is allocated to the tangible assets and liabilities and intangible assets acquired, based

on their estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over the fair value is recorded as goodwill and conversely, the excess fair

value over purchase price, ‘‘negative goodwill,’’ is allocated as a reduction to the long-lived assets. The purchase accounting method

allows a one year period to finalize the fair values of the net assets acquired. No further adjustments to fair market values are made

after that point.

The initial allocation of the purchase price resulted in the allocation of $2.4 million of negative goodwill. Subsequent to our

fiscal year ended January 31, 2004, it was determined that additional inventory related obligations should have been reflected on the
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opening balance sheet, which essentially eliminated the negative goodwill. The following table presents the final allocation of the

$57.6 million purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired based on their fair values as of December 24, 2003:

As of

December 24,

In Thousands 2003

Current assets $37,310

Property and equipment 23,529

Intangible assets 16,064

Total assets acquired 76,903

Current liabilities 19,288

Total liabilities assumed 19,288

Net assets acquired $57,615

The intangible assets include $11.0 million assigned to favorable leases which is being amortized over the related lease terms

and includes $4.8 million for the value of the tradename ‘‘Bob’s Stores,’’ which is being amortized over 10 years.

The results of Bob’s Stores have been included in our consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. Pro forma

results of operations assuming the acquisition of Bob’s Stores occurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2004 have not been presented, as

the inclusion of the results of operations for the acquired business would not have produced a material impact on the reported sales,

net income or earnings per share of the Company.

C. Long-Term Debt and Credit Lines

The table below presents long-term debt, exclusive of current installments, as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004. All

amounts are net of unamortized debt discounts. Capital lease obligations are separately presented in Note E.

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

General corporate debt:

7% unsecured notes, maturing June 15, 2005 (effective interest rate of 7.02% after reduction of

the unamortized debt discount of $19 in fiscal 2004) $ - $ 99,981

7.45% unsecured notes, maturing December 15, 2009 (effective interest rate of 7.50% after

reduction of unamortized debt discount of $311 and $375 in fiscal 2005 and 2004,

respectively) 199,689 199,625

Market value adjustment to debt hedged with interest rate swap (2,851) (3,100)

Total general corporate debt 196,838 296,506

Subordinated debt:

Zero coupon convertible subordinated notes due February 13, 2021, after reduction of

unamortized debt discount of $141,742 and $149,213 in fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively 375,755 368,287

Total subordinated debt 375,755 368,287

Long-term debt, exclusive of current installments $572,593 $664,793
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The aggregate maturities of long-term debt, exclusive of current installments at January 29, 2005 are as follows:

Long

Term

In Thousands Debt

Fiscal Year

2007 $ -

2008 375,755

2009 -

2010 199,689

Later years -

Deferred (loss) on settlement of interest rate swap and fair value adjustments on hedged debt (2,851)

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt, exclusive of current installments $572,593

The above maturity table assumes that all holders of the zero coupon convertible subordinated notes exercise their put options

in fiscal 2008. The note holders also have put options available to them in fiscal 2014. Any of the notes on which put options are not

exercised, redeemed or converted will mature in fiscal 2022.

In February 2001, TJX issued $517.5 million zero coupon convertible subordinated notes due in February 2021 and raised

gross proceeds of $347.6 million. The issue price of the notes represents a yield to maturity of 2% per year. Due to provisions of the

first put option on February 13, 2002, we amortized the debt discount assuming a 1.5% yield for fiscal 2002. The notes are

subordinated to all existing and future senior indebtedness of TJX. The notes are convertible into 16.9 million shares of common

stock of TJX if the sale price of our common stock reaches specified thresholds, if the credit rating of the notes is below investment

grade, if the notes are called for redemption or if certain specified corporate transactions occur. The holders of the notes have the

right to require us to purchase the notes for $391.7 million and $441.3 million on February 13, 2007 and 2013, respectively. The

repurchase amounts represent original purchase price plus accrued original issue discount. We may pay the purchase price in cash,

TJX stock or a combination of the two. If the holders exercise their put options, we expect to fund the payment with cash, financing

from our short-term credit facility, new long-term borrowings or a combination thereof. At the put date on February 13, 2004,

three of the notes were put to TJX. In addition, if a change in control of TJX occurs on or before February 13, 2007, each holder

may require TJX to purchase for cash all or a portion of such holder’s notes. We may redeem for cash all, or a portion of, the notes at

any time on or after February 13, 2007 for the original purchase price plus accrued original issue discount.

The fair value of our general corporate debt, including current installments, is estimated by obtaining market value quotes

given the trading levels of other bonds of the same general issuer type and market perceived credit quality. The fair value of our zero

coupon convertible subordinated notes is estimated by obtaining market quotes. The fair value of general corporate debt, including

current installments, at January 29, 2005 is $327.9 million versus a carrying value of $296.8 million. The fair value of the zero

coupon convertible subordinated notes is $447.6 million versus a carrying value of $375.8 million. These estimates do not necessarily

reflect certain provisions or restrictions in the various debt agreements which might affect our ability to settle these obligations.

During fiscal 2003, we entered into a $370 million five-year revolving credit facility and in fiscal 2005 we renewed our 364-day

revolving credit facility for $330 million. Effective March 17, 2005, we extended the 364-day agreement until July 15, 2005, with

substantially all of the terms and conditions of the original facility remaining unchanged. We anticipate that during the year we will

negotiate new agreements increasing the aggregate size of our revolving credit facilities and extending their maturity. The credit

facilities do not require any compensating balances however, TJX must maintain certain leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. Based

on our current financial condition, we believe that non-compliance with these covenants is remote. The revolving credit facilities are

used as backup to our commercial paper program. As of January 29, 2005 there were no outstanding amounts under our credit facilities.

The maximum amount of our U.S. short-term borrowings outstanding was $5 million during fiscal 2005 and $27 million during fiscal

2004. There were no short-term borrowings during fiscal 2003. The weighted average interest rate on our U.S. short-term borrowings

was 2.04% in fiscal 2005 and 1.09% in fiscal 2004.
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As of January 29, 2005, TJX had credit lines totaling C$20 million to meet certain operating needs of its Canadian subsidiary.

The maximum amount outstanding under our Canadian credit lines was C$6.8 million in fiscal 2005, C$5.6 million in fiscal 2004,

and C$19.2 million in fiscal 2003.

D. Financial Instruments

TJX enters into financial instruments to manage our cost of borrowing and to manage our exposure to changes in foreign

currency exchange rates.

Interest Rate Contracts: In December 1999, prior to the issuance of the $200 million ten-year notes, TJX entered into a rate-

lock agreement to hedge the underlying treasury rate of notes. The cost of this agreement has been deferred and is being amortized

to interest expense over the term of the notes and results in an effective fixed rate of 7.60% on this debt. During fiscal 2004, TJX

entered interest rate swaps on $100 million of the $200 million ten-year notes effectively converting the interest on that portion of

the unsecured notes from fixed to a floating rate of interest indexed to the six-month LIBOR rate. The maturity date of the interest

rate swaps coincides with the maturity date of the underlying debt. Under these swaps, TJX pays a specified variable interest rate and

receives the fixed rate applicable to the underlying debt. The interest income/expense on the swaps is accrued as earned and

recorded as an adjustment to the interest expense accrued on the fixed-rate debt. The interest rate swaps are designated as fair value

hedges of the underlying debt. The fair value of the contracts, excluding the net interest accrual, amounted to a liability of

$2.9 million and $3.1 million as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, respectively. The valuation of the swaps results in an

offsetting fair value adjustment to the debt hedged; accordingly, long-term debt has been reduced by $2.9 million in fiscal 2005 and

was reduced by $3.1 million in fiscal 2004. The average effective interest rate, on the $100 million of the 7.45% unsecured notes to

which the swaps apply, was approximately 6.45% in fiscal 2005 and approximately 5.30% in fiscal 2004.

Foreign Currency Contracts: TJX enters into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to obtain an economic hedge on

firm U.S. dollar and Euro merchandise purchase commitments made by its foreign subsidiaries, T. K. Maxx (United Kingdom) and

Winners (Canada). These commitments are typically six months or less in duration. The contracts outstanding at January 29, 2005

cover certain commitments for the first quarter of fiscal 2006. TJX elected not to apply hedge accounting rules to these contracts.

The change in the fair value of these contracts resulted in income of $1.8 million in fiscal 2005, income of $1.1 million in fiscal 2004

and expense of $2.6 million in fiscal 2003.

TJX also enters into foreign currency forward and swap contracts in both Canadian dollars and British pound sterling and

accounts for them as either a hedge of the net investment in and between our foreign subsidiaries or as a cash flow hedge of certain

long-term intercompany debt. We apply hedge accounting to these hedge contracts of our investment in foreign operations, and

changes in fair value of these contracts, as well as gains and losses upon settlement, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive

income, offsetting changes in the cumulative foreign translation adjustments of our foreign divisions. The change in fair value of the

contracts designated as a hedge of our investment in foreign operations resulted in a gain of $3.8 million, net of income taxes, in

fiscal 2005, a loss of $24.7 million, net of income taxes, in fiscal 2004, and a loss of $23.2 million in fiscal 2003. The change in the

cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment resulted in a loss of $10.7 million, net of income taxes, in fiscal 2005, a gain of

$14.3 million, net of income taxes, in fiscal 2004, and a gain of $23.0 million in fiscal 2003. Amounts included in other

comprehensive income relating to cash flow hedges are reclassified to earnings as the currency exposure on the underlying

intercompany debt impacts earnings. The net loss recognized in fiscal 2005 related to cash flow forward exchange contracts and

related underlying activity was $13.9 million, net of income taxes, this amount was offset by a gain of $11.9 million, net of income

taxes, related to the underlying exposure and both are included as components of selling, general and administrative expenses in the

statement of income. We estimate that $4.1 million of losses, net of income taxes, deferred in accumulated other comprehensive

income will be recognized in earnings over the next twelve months.

TJX also enters into derivative contracts, generally designated as fair value hedges, to hedge intercompany debt, intercompany

interest payable and intercompany license fees. The changes in fair value of these contracts are recorded in the statements of income

and are offset by marking the underlying item to fair value in the same period. Upon settlement, the realized gains and losses on

these contracts are offset by the realized gains and losses of the underlying item in the statement of income. The net impact of

hedging activity related to these intercompany amounts resulted in losses of $317,000, $2.6 million and $2.0 million in fiscal 2005,

2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Effective January 31, 2004 the value of foreign currency exchange contracts relating to inventory commitments is reported in

current earnings as a component of cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs. The income statement impact of all other

foreign currency contracts is reported as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses.

Following is a summary of TJX’s derivative financial instruments and related fair values, outstanding at January 29, 2005:

Fair

Blended Value

Contract Asset

In Thousands Pay Receive Rate (Liability)

Fair value hedges:

Interest rate swap fixed to floating on notional of LIBOR+ 4.17% 7.45% N/A U.S.$ (2,284)

$50,000

Interest rate swap fixed to floating on notional of LIBOR+ 3.42% 7.45% N/A U.S.$ (550)

$50,000

Intercompany balances, primarily short-term C$241,995 U.S.$194,619 0.8042 U.S.$ (1,017)

debt, related interest and license fees £ 24,777 U.S.$ 45,902 1.8526 U.S.$ (315)

£ 12,089 C$ 27,399 2.2664 U.S.$ (253)

Cash flow hedge:

Intercompany balances, primarily long-term debt and

related interest C$355,000 U.S.$225,540 0.6353 U.S.$(82,741)

Net investment hedges:

Net investment in and between foreign C$ 27,500 U.S.$ 22,256 0.8093 U.S.$ 20

operations £121,000 C$293,536 2.4259 U.S.$ 13,688

Hedge accounting not elected:

Merchandise purchase commitments C$ 92,173 U.S.$ 76,299 0.8278 U.S.$ 1,881

C$ 730 4 450 0.6164 U.S.$ (2)

£ 11,372 U.S.$ 21,430 1.8845 U.S.$ 11

£ 18,600 4 26,319 1.4150 U.S.$ (699)

U.S.$(72,261)

The fair value of the derivatives is classified as assets or liabilities, current or non-current, based upon valuation results and

settlement dates of the individual contracts. Following are the balance sheet classifications of the fair value of our derivatives:

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

Current assets $ 2,840 $ 6,096

Non-current assets 14,807 9,103

Current liabilities (4,380) (8,088)

Non-current liabilities (85,528) (59,991)

Net fair value asset (liability) $(72,261) $(52,880)

TJX’s forward foreign currency exchange and swap contracts require us to make payments of certain foreign currencies for

receipt of U.S. dollars, Canadian dollars or Euros. All of these contracts except the contracts relating to our investment in our foreign

operations and long-term debt mature during fiscal 2006. The British pound sterling investment hedges have maturities from fiscal

2006 to fiscal 2009, the Canadian dollar investment hedge contracts and long-term debt hedge contracts have maturities from fiscal

2006 to fiscal 2010.
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The counterparties to the forward exchange contracts and swap agreements are major international financial institutions and

the contracts contain rights of offset, which minimize our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by one of the

counterparties. We do not require counterparties to maintain collateral for these contracts. We periodically monitor our position and

the credit ratings of the counterparties and do not anticipate losses resulting from the nonperformance of these institutions.

E. Commitments

TJX is committed under long-term leases related to its continuing operations for the rental of real estate and fixtures and

equipment. Most of our leases are store operating leases with a ten-year initial term and options to extend for one or more five-year

periods. Certain Marshalls leases, acquired in fiscal 1996, had remaining terms ranging up to twenty-five years. Leases for T.K. Maxx

are generally for fifteen to twenty-five years with ten-year kick-out options. Many of the leases contain escalation clauses and early

termination penalties. In addition, we are generally required to pay insurance, real estate taxes and other operating expenses

including, in some cases, rentals based on a percentage of sales. These costs were of an amount equal to approximately one-third of

the total minimum rent for the fiscal years ended January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, respectively.

Following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for continuing operations as of January 29, 2005:

Capital Operating

In Thousands Lease Leases

Fiscal Year

2006 $ 3,726 $ 707,676

2007 3,726 682,597

2008 3,726 628,306

2009 3,726 591,677

2010 3,726 520,998

Later years 22,945 1,709,386

Total future minimum lease payments 41,575 $4,840,640

Less amount representing interest 14,047

Net present value of minimum capital lease payments $27,528

The capital lease commitment relates to a 283,000-square-foot addition to TJX’s home office facility. Rental payments

commenced June 1, 2001, and we recognized a capital lease asset and related obligation equal to the present value of the lease

payments of $32.6 million.

Rental expense under operating leases for continuing operations amounted to $713.3 million, $597.8 million, and $524.7 mil-

lion for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Rental expense includes contingent rent and is reported net of sublease income.

Contingent rent paid was $6.9 million, $8.6 million, and $8.2 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively; and sublease

income was $3.0 million in fiscal 2005 and 2004 and $3.2 million in fiscal 2003. The total net present value of TJX’s minimum

operating lease obligations approximates $3,833.4 million as of January 29, 2005, including a current portion of $497.9 million.

TJX had outstanding letters of credit totaling $52.1 million as of January 29, 2005 and $54.7 million as of January 31, 2004.

Letters of credit are issued by TJX primarily for the purchase of inventory.

F. Stock Compensation Plans

In the following note, all references to historical awards, outstanding awards and availability of shares for future grants under

TJX’s Stock Incentive Plan and related prices per share have been restated, for comparability purposes, to reflect the two-for-one

stock split distributed in May 2002.
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TJX has a stock incentive plan under which options and other stock awards may be granted to its directors, officers and key

employees. This plan has been approved by TJX’s shareholders and all stock compensation awards are made under this plan. The

Stock Incentive Plan, as amended with shareholder approval, provides for the issuance of up to 145.3 million shares with 33.2 million

shares available for future grants as of January 29, 2005.

Under the Stock Incentive Plan, TJX has granted options for the purchase of common stock, generally within ten years from

the grant date at option prices of 100% of market price on the grant date. Most options outstanding vest over a three-year period

starting one year after the grant, and are exercisable in their entirety three years after the grant date. Outstanding options granted to

directors become fully exercisable one year after the date of grant.

A summary of the status of TJX’s stock options and related Weighted Average Exercise Prices (‘‘WAEP’’) is presented below

(shares in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, 2005 January 31, 2004 January 25, 2003

Shares WAEP Shares WAEP Shares WAEP

Outstanding at beginning of year 43,539 $16.97 37,196 $15.28 29,624 $13.10

Granted 12,828 21.76 12,453 20.20 11,395 19.85

Exercised (6,534) 14.83 (4,914) 12.00 (2,970) 10.94

Forfeitures (1,275) 20.06 (1,196) 18.64 (853) 15.85

Outstanding at end of year 48,558 18.44 43,539 16.97 37,196 15.28

Options exercisable at end of year 25,017 $16.04 21,138 $14.07 16,265 $12.12

TJX realizes an income tax benefit from restricted stock vesting and the exercise of stock options, which results in a decrease in

current income taxes payable and an increase in additional paid-in capital. Such benefits amounted to $20.9 million, $13.6 million

and $11.8 million for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of January 29, 2005 (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Contract Life Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Remaining Price Shares Price

$ 1.6094 – $10.8750 6,027 4.3 years $ 9.21 6,027 $ 9.21

$10.8751 – $19.8500 18,814 6.7 years 18.13 15,513 17.76

$19.8501 – $23.4600 23,717 9.1 years 21.03 3,477 20.21

Total 48,558 7.6 years $18.44 25,017 $16.04

TJX has also issued restricted stock and performance-based stock awards under the Stock Incentive Plan. Restricted stock

awards are issued at no cost to the recipient of the award, and have restrictions that generally lapse over three to four years from date

of grant. Performance-based shares have restrictions that generally lapse over one to four years when and if specified criteria are met.

The market value in excess of cost is charged to income ratably over the period during which these awards vest. Such pre-tax charges

amounted to $9.4 million, $10.2 million and $3.2 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The market value of the awards

is determined at date of grant for restricted stock awards, and at the date shares are earned for performance-based awards.

A combined total of 220,000 shares, 600,000 shares and 325,000 shares for restricted and performance-based awards were

issued in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. No shares were forfeited during fiscal 2005, 2004 or 2003. The weighted average

market value per share of these stock awards at grant date was $22.37, $19.16 and $19.85 for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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TJX maintained a separate deferred stock compensation plan for its outside directors under which deferred share awards valued

at $10,000 each were issued annually to outside directors. During fiscal 2003, the Board merged this deferred stock compensation

plan into the Stock Incentive Plan, and all deferred shares earned will be issued pursuant to the Stock Incentive Plan. Beginning in

June 2003, the annual deferred share award granted to each outside director is valued at $30,000. As of the end of fiscal 2005, a total

of 68,536 deferred shares had been granted under the plan. Actual shares will be issued at termination of service or a change of

control. Prior to merging the deferred stock award plan into the Stock Incentive Plan, TJX planned to issue actual shares from shares

held in treasury.

G. Capital Stock and Earnings Per Share

Capital Stock: TJX distributed a two-for-one stock split, effected in the form of a 100% stock dividend, on May 8, 2002 to

shareholders of record on April 25, 2002, which resulted in the issuance of 269.4 million shares of common stock and a

corresponding decrease of $269.4 million in retained earnings. All historical earnings per share amounts and reference to common

stock activity in the notes have been restated to reflect the two-for-one stock split.

During fiscal 2003, we completed a $1 billion stock repurchase program begun in fiscal 2001 and initiated another multi-year

$1 billion stock repurchase program. This repurchase program was completed in May 2004. On May 24, 2004, we announced a new

stock repurchase program, approved by the Board of Directors, pursuant to which we may repurchase up to an additional $1 billion

of common stock. We had cash expenditures under all of our repurchase programs of $594.6 million, $520.7 million and

$481.7 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, funded primarily by cash generated from operations. The total common

shares repurchased amounted to 25.1 million shares in fiscal 2005, 26.8 million shares in fiscal 2004 and 25.9 million shares in fiscal

2003. As of January 29, 2005, we had repurchased 17.7 million shares of our common stock at a cost of $406.6 million under the

current $1 billion stock repurchase program. All shares repurchased have been retired except 75,000 shares and 87,638 shares

purchased in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively, which are held in treasury.

TJX has authorization to issue up to 5 million shares of preferred stock, par value $1. There was no preferred stock issued or

outstanding at January 29, 2005.

Earnings Per Share: In October 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (‘‘EITF’’) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(‘‘FASB’’) reached a consensus that EITF Issue No. 04-08, ‘‘The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per

Share’’ would be effective for reporting periods ending after December 15, 2004. This accounting pronouncement affects the

company’s treatment, for earnings per share purposes, of its $517.5 million zero coupon convertible subordinated notes issued in

February 2001. The notes are convertible into 16.9 million shares of TJX common stock if the sale price of our stock reaches certain

levels or other contingencies are met. Prior to this reporting period, the 16.9 million shares were excluded from the diluted earnings

per share calculation because criteria for conversion had not been met. EITF Issue No. 04-08 requires that shares associated with

contingently convertible debt be included in diluted earnings per share computations regardless of whether contingent conversion

conditions have been met. EITF Issue No. 04-08 also requires that diluted earnings per share for all prior periods be restated to

reflect this change. As a result diluted earnings per share for all periods presented reflect the assumed conversion of our convertible

subordinated notes.
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The following schedule presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ended

Amounts In Thousands January 29, January 31, January 25,

Except Per Share Amounts 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Basic earnings per share:

Net income $664,144 $658,365 $578,388

Weighted average common stock outstanding for basic earnings per share calculation 488,809 508,359 532,241

Basic earnings per share $ 1.36 $ 1.30 $ 1.09

Diluted earnings per share:

Net income $664,144 $658,365 $578,388

Add back: Interest expense on zero coupon convertible subordinated notes, net of

income taxes 4,482 4,823 4,810

Net income used for diluted earnings per share calculation $668,626 $663,188 $583,198

Weighted average common stock outstanding for basic earnings per share calculation 488,809 508,359 532,241

Assumed conversion/exercise of:

Convertible subordinated notes 16,905 16,905 16,905

Stock options and awards 6,935 4,515 5,499

Weighted average common shares for diluted earnings per share calculation 512,649 529,779 554,645

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.30 $ 1.25 $ 1.05

The weighted average common shares for the diluted earnings per share calculation exclude the incremental effect related to

outstanding stock options, the exercise price of which is in excess of the related fiscal year’s average price of TJX’s common stock.

Such options are excluded because they would have an antidilutive effect. There were no such options excluded as of January 29,

2005. As of January 31, 2004 and January 25, 2003, these options amounted to 22.7 million and 11.2 million, respectively.

H. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

In Thousands 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Current:

Federal $289,949 $244,538 $218,857

State 67,934 55,471 47,894

Foreign 16,499 25,190 20,758

Deferred:

Federal 29,211 70,496 57,125

State (2,203) 4,990 5,558

Foreign 14,159 9,276 9,144

Provision for income taxes $415,549 $409,961 $359,336
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TJX had net deferred tax (liabilities) as follows:

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:

Foreign net operating loss carryforward $ 765 $ 9,074

Reserve for discontinued operations 4,209 6,735

Reserve for closed store and restructuring costs 3,028 3,374

Pension, postretirement and employee benefits 54,890 43,108

Leases 34,409 24,228

Other 45,397 35,985

Foreign tax credits - 5,564

Total deferred tax assets 142,698 128,068

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 153,155 116,772

Safe harbor leases 10,914 11,862

Tradename 40,719 42,873

Undistributed foreign earnings 56,238 38,100

Other 36,579 33,299

Total deferred tax liabilities 297,605 242,906

Net deferred tax (liability) $(154,907) $(114,838)

The fiscal 2005 total net deferred tax liability is presented on the balance sheet as a current liability of $2.3 million and a non-

current liability of $152.6 million. For fiscal 2004, the net deferred tax liability is presented on the balance sheet as a current asset of

$9.0 million and a non-current liability of $123.8 million. TJX has provided for deferred U.S. taxes on all undistributed Canadian

earnings. All earnings of TJX’s other foreign subsidiaries are indefinitely reinvested and no deferred taxes have been provided for on

those earnings. The net deferred tax liability relating to foreign operations is included above and amounted to $31.0 million and

$16.0 million as of January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, respectively.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA) enacted on October 22, 2004 will allow companies to repatriate the

undistributed earnings of its foreign operations in fiscal 2006 at an effective rate of 5.25%. The Company is evaluating the impact of

the act on TJX.

TJX has a United Kingdom operating loss carryforward of approximately $2.4 million that may be applied against future

taxable income in the U.K., all of which has been recognized for financial reporting purposes. The U.K. net operating loss does not

expire under current tax law.

TJX’s worldwide effective income tax rate was 38.5% for fiscal 2005, 38.4% for fiscal 2004 and 38.3% for fiscal 2003. The

difference between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and TJX’s worldwide effective income tax rate is reconciled below:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

2005 2004 2003

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Effective state income tax rate 4.3 4.2 4.1

Impact of foreign operations (.4) (.6) (.3)

All other (.4) (.2) (.5)

Worldwide effective income tax rate 38.5% 38.4% 38.3%
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The additional benefit reflected in ‘‘all other’’ in fiscal 2003 is due to the favorable effect of the tax benefit for payment of

executive retirement benefits in exchange for the termination of split-dollar arrangements described in Note I.

I. Pension Plans and Other Retirement Benefits

Pension: TJX has a funded defined benefit retirement plan covering the majority of its full-time U.S. employees. Employees

who have attained twenty-one years of age and have completed one year of service are covered under the plan. No employee

contributions are required and benefits are based on compensation earned in each year of service. We also have an unfunded

supplemental retirement plan which covers key employees of the Company and provides additional retirement benefits based on

average compensation. Our funded defined benefit retirement plan assets are invested primarily in stock and bonds of U.S.

corporations, excluding TJX, as well as various investment funds.

Presented below is financial information relating to TJX’s funded defined benefit retirement plan (Funded Plan) and its

unfunded supplemental pension plan (Unfunded Plan) for the fiscal years indicated. The valuation date for both plans is as of

December 31 prior to the fiscal year end date:

Funded Plan Unfunded Plan

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 29, January 31,

Dollars in Thousands 2005 2004 2005 2004

(53 Weeks) (53 Weeks)

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $288,758 $230,897 $45,817 $38,706

Service cost 27,937 22,288 1,284 1,146

Interest cost 17,074 15,088 2,763 2,673

Amendments - - - 461

Actuarial losses 14,171 27,684 3,339 5,032

Benefits paid (6,735) (6,126) (2,162) (2,201)

Expenses paid (1,094) (1,073) - -

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $340,111 $288,758 $51,041 $45,817

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $315,256 $268,398 $34,326 $30,510

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $274,171 $216,919 $ - $ -

Actual return on plan assets 32,033 46,951 - -

Employer contribution 25,000 17,500 2,162 2,201

Benefits paid (6,735) (6,126) (2,162) (2,201)

Expenses paid (1,094) (1,073) - -

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $323,375 $274,171 $ - $ -

Reconciliation of funded status:

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $340,111 $288,758 $51,041 $45,817

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 323,375 274,171 - -

Funded status — excess obligations 16,736 14,587 51,041 45,817

Unrecognized transition obligation - - 75 149

Employer contributions after measurement date and on or before

fiscal year end - - 151 151

Unrecognized prior service cost 236 294 957 1,433

Unrecognized actuarial losses 75,536 78,121 14,718 13,164

Net (asset) liability recognized $ (59,036) $ (63,828) $35,140 $30,920

F-21



Funded Plan Unfunded Plan

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 29, January 31,

Dollars in Thousands 2005 2004 2005 2004

(53 Weeks) (53 Weeks)

Amount recognized in the statements of financial position consists of:

Net (asset) accrued liability $ (59,036) $ (63,828) $35,140 $30,920

Intangible asset - - - -

Net (asset) liability recognized $ (59,036) $ (63,828) $35,140 $30,920

Weighted average assumptions for measurement purposes:

Discount rate 5.75% 6.00% 5.50% 5.55%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% NA NA

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 6.00% 6.00%

The net asset attributable to the funded plan is reflected on the balance sheets as a non-current asset of $26.1 million and a

current asset of $32.9 million as of January 29, 2005 and a non-current asset of $32.3 million and a current asset of $31.5 million as

of January 31, 2004. The net accrued liability attributable to TJX’s unfunded supplemental retirement plan is included in other long-

term liabilities on the balance sheets.

We made aggregate cash contributions of $27.2 million, $19.7 million and $59.9 million for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003,

respectively, to the non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan and to fund current benefit and expense payments under the

unfunded supplemental retirement plan. Our funding policy is to fund any required contribution to the plan at the full funding

limitation. Contributions in excess of any required contribution will be made so as to fully fund the accumulated benefit obligation

to the extent such contribution is allowed for tax purposes. As a result of voluntary funding contributions made in fiscal 2005, fiscal

2004 and fiscal 2003, we do not anticipate any funding requirements for fiscal 2006. The following is a summary of our target

allocation for plan assets along with the actual allocation of plan assets as of the valuation date for the fiscal years presented:

Target Actual Allocation for

Allocation Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31,

2005 2004

Equity securities 60% 60% 62%

Fixed income 40% 38% 32%

All other — primarily cash - 2% 6%

We employ a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments is used to maximize

the long-term return of plan assets with a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan

liabilities, funded plan status, and corporate financial condition. The investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and

fixed income investments. Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. stocks, as well as small and large

capitalizations. Both actively managed and passively invested portfolios may be utilized for U.S. equity investments. Other assets such

as real estate funds, private equity funds, and hedge funds are currently used for their diversification and return enhancing

characteristics. Derivatives may be used to reduce market exposure, however, derivatives may not be used to leverage the portfolio

beyond the market value of the underlying investments. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through

quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements, and periodic asset/liability studies.

We employ a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return for plan assets. Historical markets are

studied and long-term historical relationships between equities and fixed income are preserved consistent with the widely accepted

capital market principle that assets with higher volatility generate a greater return over the long term. Current market factors such as

inflation and interest rates are evaluated before long-term capital market assumptions are determined. Proper consideration is also

given to asset class diversification and rebalancing as well as to the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the plan by

each category of plan assets. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to check for reasonability and appropriateness.
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Following are the components of net periodic benefit cost for our pension plans:

Funded Plan Unfunded Plan

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25, January 29, January 31, January 25,

Dollars In Thousands 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks) (53 Weeks)

Service cost $ 27,937 $ 22,288 $ 17,224 $1,284 $1,146 $1,153

Interest cost 17,074 15,088 13,053 2,763 2,673 2,345

Expected return on plan assets (21,585) (16,941) (14,085) - - -

Amortization of transition obligation - - - 75 75 75

Amortization of prior service cost 56 58 58 475 360 245

Recognized actuarial losses 6,309 9,320 3,711 1,785 4,023 5,013

Net periodic pension cost $ 29,791 $ 29,813 $ 19,961 $6,382 $8,277 $8,831

Weighted average assumptions for expense

purposes:

Discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 7.00% 5.55% 5.85% 6.35%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% NA NA NA

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

Net pension expense for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 reflects an increase in service cost due to a reduction in the discount rate

and is impacted by the change in the amortization of actuarial losses. Net periodic pension cost in all periods also reflects increased

service cost attributable to the change in assumption regarding mortality effective at the beginning of fiscal 2002.

The unrecognized gains and losses in excess of 10% of the projected benefit obligation are amortized over the average

remaining service life of participants. In addition, for the unfunded plan, unrecognized actuarial gains and losses that exceed 30% of

the projected benefit obligation are fully recognized in net periodic pension cost.

Following is a schedule of the benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the five

fiscal years thereafter:

Funded Plan Unfunded Plan

In Thousands Expected Benefit Payments Expected Benefit Payments

Fiscal Year

2006 $ 8,540 $ 2,635

2007 9,579 1,941

2008 10,678 2,205

2009 11,988 2,209

2010 13,526 2,418

2011 through 2015 101,103 17,721

During fiscal 2001 and 2000, the Company entered into separate arrangements with two executives whereby the Company

agreed to fund life insurance policies on a so-called split-dollar basis in exchange for a waiver of all or a portion of the executives’

retirement benefits under TJX’s supplemental retirement plan. The arrangements were designed so that the after-tax cash expendi-

tures by TJX on the policies, net of expected refunds of premiums paid, would be substantially equivalent, on a present value basis, to

the after-tax cash expenditures that TJX would have incurred under its unfunded supplemental retirement plan. During fiscal 2003,

it was decided to unwind the earlier transactions due to changes in the law. During fiscal 2003, TJX’s obligations under the split-

dollar arrangements were canceled and TJX agreed to pay the individuals additional amounts such that the net after-tax cost to TJX,

taking into account the unwind of those arrangements, would be substantially equivalent on a present value basis to the after-tax cost

of TJX’s original supplemental retirement plan obligations to the individuals. In addition, TJX made a supplemental payment to one

of the individuals and agreed to indemnify the other individual up to a specified limit for possible taxes associated with the unwind
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transaction. Due to the differences in the income statement reporting and income tax treatment of these two different types of

benefits, the income statement for fiscal 2003 includes a pre-tax charge of $2.1 million, offset by tax benefits of $3.8 million for an

increase in net income of $1.7 million. The cumulative effect on net income through fiscal 2003 of the initial transactions in fiscal

2001 and 2000, and of the related transactions in fiscal 2003, is substantially the same as the after-tax cost of the retirement benefit

earned under the supplemental retirement plan. The Company has a contingent obligation of $1.2 million in connection with an

indemnification clause relating to one executive’s potential tax liability.

TJX also sponsors an employee savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for all eligible U.S.

employees. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, assets under the plan totaled $504.7 million and $421.8 million respectively, and are

invested in a variety of funds. Employees may contribute up to 50% of eligible pay. TJX matches employee contributions, up to 5%

of eligible pay, at rates ranging from 25% to 50% based upon the Company’s performance. TJX contributed $8.1 million in fiscal

2005, $7.3 million in fiscal 2004 and $7.1 million in fiscal 2003 to the 401(k) plan. Employees cannot invest their contributions in

the TJX stock fund option in the 401(k) plan, and may elect to invest up to only 50% of the Company’s contribution in the TJX

stock fund; the TJX stock fund has no other trading restrictions. The TJX stock fund represents 4.3%, 4.5% and 5.1% of plan

investments at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

During fiscal 1999, TJX established a nonqualified savings plan for certain U.S. employees. TJX matches employee contribu-

tions at various rates which amounted to $274,000 in fiscal 2005, $226,000 in fiscal 2004, and $218,000 in fiscal 2003. TJX transfers

employee withholdings and the related company match to a separate trust designated to fund the future obligations. The trust assets,

which are invested in a variety of mutual funds, are included in other assets on the balance sheets.

In addition to the plans described above, we also maintain retirement/deferred savings plans for all eligible associates at our

foreign subsidiaries. We contributed to these plans $2.7 million, $2.3 million and $1.9 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003,

respectively.

Postretirement Medical: TJX has an unfunded postretirement medical plan that provides limited postretirement medical and life

insurance benefits to employees who participate in our retirement plan and who retire at age 55 or older with ten or more years of

service. The valuation date for the plan is as of December 31 prior to the fiscal year end date. Presented below is certain financial

information relating to the unfunded postretirement medical plan for the fiscal years indicated:

Postretirement Medical

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31,

Dollars In Thousands 2005 2004

(53 Weeks)

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $40,035 $36,061

Service cost 3,920 3,259

Interest cost 2,332 2,171

Participants’ contributions 92 58

Actuarial (gain) loss 2,072 (56)

Benefits paid (1,398) (1,458)

Benefit obligation at end of year $47,053 $40,035

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ - $ -

Employer contribution 1,306 1,400

Participants’ contributions 92 58

Benefits paid (1,398) (1,458)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ - $ -
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Postretirement Medical

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31,

Dollars In Thousands 2005 2004

(53 Weeks)

Reconciliation of funded status:

Benefit obligation at end of year $47,053 $40,035

Fair value of plan assets at end of year - -

Funded status - excess obligations 47,053 40,035

Unrecognized prior service cost (382) (49)

Employer contributions after measurement date and on or before fiscal year end 119 121

Unrecognized actuarial losses 7,691 5,748

Net accrued liability recognized $39,625 $34,215

Weighted average assumptions for measurement purposes:

Discount rate 5.50% 6.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

For purposes of measuring TJX’s obligations under the postretirement medical plan, a gross annual rate of increase in the per

capita cost of covered health care benefits of 9% was assumed in 2005 and is reduced by 1% each year to 5% in 2009 and thereafter.

However due to the plans’ $3,000 per capita annual limit on medical benefits, the effect of the changes in trend is limited. An

increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate of one percentage point for all future years would increase the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation at January 29, 2005 by approximately $1.8 million and the total of the service cost and interest cost

components of net periodic postretirement cost for fiscal 2005 by approximately $250,000. Similarly, decreasing the trend rate by

one percentage point for all future years would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at January 29, 2005 by

approximately $1.8 million as well as the total of the service cost and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement cost for

fiscal 2005 by approximately $250,000.

Following are components of net periodic benefit cost related to our Postretirement Medical plan:

Postretirement Medical

January 29, January 31, January 25,

Dollars In Thousands 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Service cost $3,920 $3,259 $2,477

Interest cost 2,332 2,171 2,022

Amortization of prior service cost 332 332 332

Recognized actuarial losses 130 68 -

Net periodic benefit cost $6,714 $5,830 $4,831

Weighted average assumptions for expense purposes:

Discount rate 6.00% 6.50% 7.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

F-25



Following is a schedule of the benefits expected to be paid under the unfunded postretirement medical plan in each of the

next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter:

Expected Benefit

In Thousands Payments

Fiscal Year

2006 $ 1,741

2007 1,884

2008 2,068

2009 2,282

2010 2,522

2011 through 2015 19,945

As of January 25, 2003, in addition to TJX’s postretirement plan described above, we had a retirement prescription drug

benefit that was included in several collective bargaining agreements. The prescription drug benefit obligation as of January 25, 2003,

amounted to $8.1 million with a periodic benefit cost of $1.5 million for fiscal 2003. In fiscal 2004 the collective bargaining

agreements were amended which eliminated this obligation.

J. Accrued Expenses And Other Liabilities, Current And Long-Term

The major components of accrued expenses and other current liabilities are as follows:

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

Employee compensation and benefits, current $217,011 $181,740

Rent, utilities, and occupancy, including real estate taxes 107,600 95,209

Merchandise credits and gift certificates 116,587 93,834

Sales tax collections and V.A.T. taxes 88,679 87,646

All other current liabilities 294,270 265,249

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $824,147 $723,678

All other current liabilities include accruals for income taxes payable, insurance, property additions, dividends, freight and

other items, each of which are individually less than 5% of current liabilities.

The major components of other long-term liabilities are as follows:

January 29, January 31,

In Thousands 2005 2004

Employee compensation and benefits, long-term $125,721 $105,993

Reserve for store closing and restructuring 5,712 6,592

Reserve related to discontinued operations 12,365 17,518

Accrued rent and landlord allowances 162,313 77,842

Fair value of derivatives 85,528 59,991

Long-term liabilities — other 75,147 69,785

Other long-term liabilities $466,786 $337,721

Accrued rent for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 includes the effect of a one-time, non-cash charge relating to lease

accounting as discussed in Note A. Effective January 29, 2005, $47 million of cumulative unamortized landlord construction

allowances, initially recorded as a reduction of property, were reclassified to long-term liabilities as a component of accrued rent and

landlord allowances.
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K. Discontinued Operations Reserve And Related Contingent Liabilities

We have a reserve for potential future obligations of discontinued operations that relates primarily to real estate leases of former

TJX businesses that have been sold or spun off. The reserve reflects TJX’s estimation of its cost for claims that have been, or are likely

to be, made against TJX for liability as an original lessee or guarantor of the leases when the assignees of the leases filed for

bankruptcy, after mitigation of the number and cost of lease obligations.

At January 29, 2005, substantially all leases of discontinued operations that were rejected in the bankruptcies and for which the

landlords asserted liability against TJX had been resolved. It is possible that there will be future costs for leases from these

discontinued operations that were not terminated or have not expired. We do not expect to incur any material costs related to our

discontinued operations in excess of our reserve. The reserve balance amounted to $12.4 million as of January 29, 2005 and

$17.5 million as of January 31, 2004.

During the second quarter ended July 31, 2004, we received a $2.3 million creditor recovery in the House2Home bankruptcy

which we offset by a $2.3 million addition to our reserve. We expect to receive some additional creditor recovery, but the amount

has not yet been determined.

We may also be contingently liable on up to 20 leases of BJ’s Wholesale Club, another former TJX business, for which BJ’s Wholesale

Club is primarily liable. Our reserve for discontinued operations does not reflect these leases, because we believe that the likelihood of any

future liability to TJX with respect to these leases is remote due to the current financial condition of BJ’s Wholesale Club.

L. Guarantees And Contingent Obligations

We have contingent obligations on leases, for which we were a lessee or guarantor, which were assigned to third parties

without TJX being released by the landlords. Over many years, we have assigned numerous leases that we originally leased or

guaranteed to a significant number of third parties. With the exception of leases of our discontinued operations discussed above, we

have rarely had a claim with respect to assigned leases, and accordingly, we do not expect that such leases will have a material adverse

effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We do not generally have sufficient information about these

leases to estimate our potential contingent obligations under them.

We also have contingent obligations in connection with some assigned or sublet properties that we are able to estimate. We

estimate the undiscounted obligations, not reflected in our reserves, of leases of closed stores of continuing operations, BJ’s

Wholesale Club leases discussed in Note K and properties of our discontinued operations that we have sublet, if the subtenants did

not fulfill their obligations, is approximately $120 million as of January 29, 2005. We believe that most or all of these contingent

obligations will not revert to TJX and, to the extent they do, will be resolved for substantially less due to mitigating factors.

We are a party to various agreements under which we may be obligated to indemnify the other party with respect to breach of

warranty or losses related to such matters as title to assets sold, specified environmental matters or certain income taxes. These

obligations are typically limited in time and amount. There are no amounts reflected in our balance sheets with respect to these

contingent obligations.

M. Supplemental Cash Flows Information

The cash flows required to satisfy contingent obligations of the discontinued operations as discussed in Note K, are classified as

a reduction in cash provided by continuing operations. There are no remaining operating activities relating to these operations.
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TJX’s cash payments for interest and income taxes and non-cash investing and financing activities are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

In Thousands 2005 2004 2003

(53 weeks)

Cash paid for:

Interest on debt $ 25,074 $ 25,313 $ 26,943

Income taxes 338,952 260,818 233,033

Change in accrued expenses due to:

Stock repurchase $ (6,657) $ (5,477) $ 15,871

Dividends payable 4,160 1,856 3,396

There were no non-cash financing or investing activities during fiscal 2005, 2004 or 2003.

N. Segment Information

The T.J. Maxx and Marshalls store chains are managed on a combined basis and are reported as the Marmaxx segment. The

Winners and HomeSense chains are also managed on a combined basis and operate exclusively in Canada. T.K. Maxx operates in

the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. Winners and T.K. Maxx accounted for 17% of TJX’s net sales for fiscal 2005,

15% of segment profit and 20% of all consolidated assets. All of our other store chains operate in the United States with the

exception of 14 stores operated in Puerto Rico by Marshalls which include 5 HomeGoods locations in a ‘‘Marshalls Mega Store’’

format. All of our stores, with the exception of HomeGoods, HomeSense and Bob’s Stores sell apparel for the entire family with a

limited offering of giftware and home fashions. The HomeGoods and HomeSense stores offer home fashions and home furnishings.

Bob’s Stores is a value-oriented retailer of branded family apparel.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based on ‘‘segment profit or loss,’’ which we define as pre-tax income before

general corporate expense and interest. ‘‘Segment profit or loss,’’ as defined by TJX, may not be comparable to similarly titled

measures used by other entities. In addition, this measure of performance should not be considered an alternative to net income or

cash flows from operating activities as an indicator of our performance or as a measure of liquidity.
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Presented below is selected financial information related to our business segments:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29, January 31, January 25,

In Thousands 2005 2004 2003

(53 Weeks)

Net sales:
Marmaxx $10,489,478 $ 9,937,206 $ 9,485,582
Winners and HomeSense 1,285,439 1,076,333 793,202
T.K. Maxx 1,304,443 992,187 720,141
HomeGoods 1,012,923 876,536 705,072
A.J. Wright 530,643 421,604 277,210
Bob’s Stores (1) 290,557 24,072 -

$14,913,483 $13,327,938 $11,981,207

Segment profit (loss): (2)
Marmaxx $ 1,023,524 $ 961,632 $ 887,944
Winners and HomeSense 108,884 106,745 85,301
T.K. Maxx 70,724 59,059 43,044
HomeGoods 23,132 49,836 32,128
A.J. Wright (15,032) 1,692 (12,566)
Bob’s Stores (1) (17,269) (4,970) -

1,193,963 1,173,994 1,035,851
General corporate expense 88,513 78,416 72,754
Interest expense, net 25,757 27,252 25,373

Income before provision for income taxes $ 1,079,693 $ 1,068,326 $ 937,724

Identifiable assets:
Marmaxx $ 2,972,526 $ 2,677,291 $ 2,394,911
Winners and HomeSense 422,215 315,765 203,318
T.K. Maxx 588,170 447,080 335,878
HomeGoods 326,964 291,967 216,515
A.J. Wright 218,788 182,360 133,221
Bob’s Stores (1) 83,765 77,384 -
Corporate (3) 463,045 404,920 656,646

$ 5,075,473 $ 4,396,767 $ 3,940,489

Capital expenditures:
Marmaxx $ 224,460 $ 234,667 $ 255,142
Winners and HomeSense 52,214 40,141 34,756
T.K. Maxx 92,170 56,852 38,349
HomeGoods 18,782 45,301 23,270
A.J. Wright 31,767 31,863 45,207
Bob’s Stores (1) 9,740 213 -

$ 429,133 $ 409,037 $ 396,724

Depreciation and amortization:
Marmaxx $ 169,020 $ 154,666 $ 141,994
Winners and HomeSense 24,883 19,956 13,913
T.K. Maxx 35,727 26,840 20,656
HomeGoods 20,881 17,254 15,107
A.J. Wright 14,356 10,128 7,088
Bob’s Stores (1) 5,894 727 -
Corporate (4) 8,298 8,814 9,118

$ 279,059 $ 238,385 $ 207,876

(1) Bob’s Stores results for fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 are for the period following its acquisition on December 24, 2003.

(2) A one-time, non-cash charge was recorded in the fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 to conform accounting policies with generally accepted accounting principles

related to the timing of rent expense. This change resulted in a one-time, cumulative, pre-tax adjustment of $30.7 million. See Note A at ‘‘Lease Accounting.’’

(3) Corporate identifiable assets consist primarily of cash, prepaid pension expense and a note receivable.

(4) Includes debt discount and debt expense amortization.
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O. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Presented below is selected quarterly consolidated financial data for fiscal 2005 and 2004 that was prepared on the same basis as

the audited consolidated financial statements and includes all adjustments necessary to present fairly, in all material respects, the

information set forth therein on a consistent basis.

First Second Third Fourth

In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter (2)

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005

Net sales $3,352,737 $3,414,287 $3,817,350 $4,329,109

Gross earnings (1) 834,391 785,080 960,245 962,020

Net income 168,112 118,242 200,855 176,935

Basic earnings per share .34 .24 .41 .37

Diluted earnings per share .32 .23 .40 .35

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 (53 weeks)

Net sales $2,788,705 $3,046,184 $3,387,452 $4,105,597

Gross earnings (1) 675,075 719,126 859,403 997,140

Net income 113,531 123,262 182,833 238,739

Basic earnings per share .22 .24 .36 .48

Diluted earnings per share .21 .23 .35 .46

(1) Gross earnings equal net sales less cost of sales, including buying and occupancy costs.

(2) The fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 includes fourteen weeks.

In accordance with EITF No. 04-08, as described in Note A, the shares associated with TJX’s contingently convertible

debentures are included in the diluted earnings per share computation and quarterly results for the first three quarters of the fiscal

year ended January 29, 2005 and for all of the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 have been adjusted from previously reported

amounts. The quarterly earnings per share as reported and as restated for fiscal 2005 and 2004 follows:

Quarterly Earnings Per Share

Fiscal 2005 As Reported As Restated

First Quarter $.33 $.32

Second Quarter .24 .23

Third Quarter .41 .40

Fiscal 2004

First Quarter $.22 $.21

Second Quarter .24 .23

Third Quarter .36 .35

Fourth Quarter .47 .46

Also, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, TJX recorded a one-time non-cash charge to conform its accounting policies with

generally accepted accounting principles related to the timing of rent expense. This change resulted in a one-time, cumulative, non-

cash adjustment of $19.3 million after-tax, or $.04 per share, which we recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. See Note A at

‘‘Lease Accounting.’’
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The TJX Companies, Inc. is the largest apparel and home

fashions off-price retailer in the United States and world-

wide, operating eight businesses at 2004's year end, and

ranking 141st in the 2004 Fortune 500 rankings. TJX's

of f-pr ice  concept s  inc lude T.J. Maxx, Mar sha l l s ,

HomeGoods, and A.J. Wright in the U.S., Winners and

HomeSense in Canada, and T.K. Maxx in Europe. Bob's

Stores is a value-oriented, family apparel retailer, with

stores in the northeastern U.S. Our off-price mission is to

deliver a rapidly changing assortment of quality, brand

name merchandise at prices that are 20 - 60% less than

department and specialty store regular prices, every day.

Our target customer for our off-price concepts is a mid-

dle- to upper-middle income shopper, who is fashion and

value conscious and fits the same profile as a department

store shopper, with the exception of A.J. Wright, which

reaches a more moderate-income market. Bob's Stores has

a customer demographic spanning the moderate to

upper-middle income range, with a higher percentage

of males in its customer base.
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Information concerning the Company’s operations and
financial position is provided in this report and in the Form
10–K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
A copy of the Form 10–K is included in this report and
additional copies may be obtained without charge by
accessing the Company’s website at www.tjx.com or by
writing or calling:

The TJX Companies, Inc.
Investor Relations
770 Cochituate Road
Framingham, MA 01701
(508) 390-2323

Investor Relations

Analysts and investors seeking financial data about the
Company are asked to visit our corporate website at
www.tjx.com or to contact:

Sherry Lang
Vice President, Investor and Public Relations
(508) 390-2323

Annual Meeting

The 2005 annual meeting will be held at 11:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, June 7, 2005, at The TJX Companies, Inc.,
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Executive Offices

Framingham, Massachusetts 01701

For the store nearest you, call:

T.J. Maxx: 1-800-2-TJMAXX
Marshalls: 1-800-MARSHALLS
Winners: 1-877-WINN-877 (in Canada)
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Public Information and SEC filings:

Visit our corporate website:

www.tjx.com

Shop us online at:

www.tjmaxx.com
www.homegoods.com

Visit us online at:

www.marshallsonline.com
www.tkmaxx.com
www.winners.ca
www.homesense.ca
www.aj-wright.com
www.bobstores.com
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